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BUSINESS MODEL
Advanced invests in day hospitals which have facilities 

that are modern, compact, and equipped to render 

same-day surgical procedures efficiently, with a strong 

focus on the quality of surgical outcomes at extremely 

competitive rates for patients and medical schemes. The 

business model is centered around a patient experience 

where procedures are done and completed the same day 

at low cost. This is achieved by partnering with medical 

GROUP PROFILE

Advanced Health Limited (“Advanced”/“Group”) establish-

es, invests in, and manages day hospitals in Australia and 

South Africa. The company has two subsidiaries which are 

Presmed Australia (Pty) Ltd (“Presmed”)/(“PMA”) and Ad-

vanced South Africa Proprietary Limited (“AHSA”).

Advanced is an important role player in day surgery across 

South Africa and Australia. Advanced has positioned itself 

within an existing healthcare system, filling a gap in the mar-

ket for day surgery both in South Africa and in Australia.

Advanced was listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange 

in 2014. Our facilities are modern, compact, and equipped 

to render same-day surgical procedures efficiently, with 

a strong focus on the quality of surgical outcomes at 

extremely competitive rates for patients and medical 

schemes. The Company offers surgical procedures for Ear, 

Nose and Throat (ENT); Dental and Maxillo Facial; Gener-

al Surgery; Ophthalmology; Gynaecology; Plastic Surgery; 

Orthopaedics and Urology, to name some of the major dis-

ciplines performed in same day surgery centres.

PHILOSOPHY
The Advanced philosophy is in line with the current 

changes in the healthcare industry, where the move to 

compact and custom-designed short - procedure facilities 

is being accelerated by surgical technology and modern 

anaesthesiologic techniques in both South Africa and 

Australia.

AUSTRALIA
PMA owns four day hospitals and owns a significant 

stake in a fifth day hospital. The four hospitals are Epping 

Surgery Centre, Central Coast Surgery Centre, Madison 

Day Surgery and Chatswood Private Hospital while a 

significant stake is held in Metwest Day Hospital.  

In Australia, the day hospital industry remains a strong 

and viable business sector in the healthcare system, with 

over 40% of the Australian population having private 

healthcare cover. Day hospitals remain the competitive 

option for private patients compared to overnight 

hospitals, with Presmed positioning itself well in this 

industry.

SOUTH AFRICA
AHSA owns day hospitals which are located in Durbanville, 

eMalahleni, Groenkloof (Pretoria), East Rand, Knysna, 

Roodepoort, Panorama, Worcester, and  Simon’s Town. 

In South Africa, Medical schemes are aligning themselves 

to the day hospital model, and we are gradually seeing 

traction in them directing surgical procedures towards 

day hospitals as an alternative, more cost-effective option. 

More medical aids are channelling patients towards day 

surgery due to the cost effectiveness.

South African footprintAustralian footprint
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StaffPatients Doctors

practitioners. Advanced offers medical practitioners the 

opportunity to obtain shareholding in the day hospitals 

within the Advanced network to ensure a long term 

and a sustainable future. Our network of hospitals are 

supported by a centralized team of experts to ensure 

effective management, staffing and shared services such 

as information technology, marketing, and administration. 

Properties are developed and owned by property 

developers, and tenure is secured through a long-term 

lease agreement with subsidiaries of Advanced. 

OPERATIONAL FOCUS
Our operational focus is concentrated in three areas:

VISION AND MISSION STATEMENT
Our vision and mission is to grow the day hospital industry 

as leaders in affordable, quality healthcare inspiring 

confidence and enriching the lives of our patients, staff, 

associated medical practitioners and stakeholders.

The Coronavirus (“Covid-19”) pandemic influenced 

the day to day operations of Advanced both in 

South Africa and Australia as elective surgeries were 

suspended. Advanced’s business is mainly elective 

surgeries. 



FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE

Turnover  
per case

 R680.7 million  

(2020: R476.2 million)

 +43%

+ 24% 

(2020: + 3.1%)

EBITDA

Number  
of cases

+ >100%

R162.6 million 

(2020: R54.5 million)

+ 15% 

(2020: - 3.8%)

Headline loss  
per share

Cash generated 
from operations

+ >100%

+ 44%

3.89c

(2020: 49.42c)

R111.8 million 

(2020: R77.6 million)
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OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP
The Group made a profit of R24.4 million (2020: loss of R94.1 million) before tax and R0.6 million (2020: loss R133.8 million) 

after tax. The results were driven by a strong performance of the Australia segment which contributed R62.5 million (2020: 

R14.4 million) in profit after tax. The South African operations continued to be in a loss situation, this was driven by different 

factors including the impact of Covid-19. The losses after tax have been reduced by R84.7 million when compared to the 

prior periods. Included in the profit for the year are impairments of R9.9 million (2020: R4.7 million) from the South African 

operations.

2021
Audited

2020
Audited Variance

Segment information R’000 R’000  %

Revenue 680 675 476 220 43%
South Africa 229 525 176 965 30%
Australia 451 150 299 255 51%
Profit/(Loss) for the year 576 (133 841) <100%
South Africa (47 680) (132 365) (64%)
Australia 62 514 14 354 >100%
Corporate (14 258) (15 830) (10%)

EBITDA 162 616 54 466 >100%
South Africa 37 329 (623) <100%

Australia 133 628 62 865 113%

Corporate (8 341) (7 776) 7%

5ADVANCED HEALTH
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REVENUE
Total Group Revenue of R680.7 million (2020: 476.2 million) 
was 43% ahead of prior year. The increase of 43% was as a 
result of an increase in the number of cases and revenue per 
case achieved in 2021 financial year. The higher revenue per 
case was driven by a better case mix achieved in the current 
year when compared to the prior year. The increase in case 
volumes was achieved both in South Africa and in Australia 
when compared to the prior year.

Revenue generated by the South African segment was 30% 
ahead of the prior year while Australia was 51% ahead of   
prior year. The increase in revenue within the South African 
operations was mainly due to an increase in revenue per 
case achieved in 2021 financial year which was driven by 
the type of cases that were performed in our day hospitals. 
The type of cases that were performed in our hospitals was 
influenced by COVID-19 where some surgeries that would 
have ordinarily been performed in acute hospitals were 
done in a day hospital, this was because the day hospitals 
were perceived to be safer and a COVID-19 free environment 
when compared to the acute hospitals.

The 51% increase in revenue from Australia was partially 
influenced by fluctuations in exchange rates. The average 
exchange rate  in the current year was R11.487 compared to 
R10.489 that was used in the prior year. The other factor that 
influenced the revenue increase in Australia in the current 
year was the backlog in cases that was caused by patients 
that could not be operated during the last quarter of the 
2020 financial year as per government COVID-19 restrictions 
that were in place. These surgeries were performed during 
the first few months of the 2021 financial year.   

Revenue contribution from Australia was 66% in the 2021 
financial year compared to 63% contribution in the prior 
year.

EBITDA
EBITDA of R162.6 million (R54.5 million) was more than 
100% ahead of the prior year. The increase in EBITDA can 
be directly attributable to an increase in revenue of 43% 
and better margins (49%) that were achieved in the 2021 
financial year when compared to 45% that was achieved 
in the 2020 financial year. Also influencing EBITDA were 
operational expenses that were well maintained in the 
current financial year. The increase in expenses of 4% 
is inflationary related and also partially influenced by 
additional costs relating to  COVID-19 which were only 
included for 3 months in the prior year compared to   a full 
year in 2021.

Both South Africa and Australia business segment EBITDA
was more than 100% better than the prior year. 65% of 
the total increase in EBIDTDA of R108.2 million was from 
Australia while 35% was from South Africa.

The increase in Australia revenue is attributable to the following factors:

• The ongoing support from specialists.

• Volume increase influenced by COVID-19 factors, the initial few months of the 2021 financial year saw an artificial increase 
in patient surgery from the backlog of patients that could not be operated during the last quarter of the 2020 financial 
year as per the government COVID-19 restrictions that were put in place.

South Africa Australia

2021

66%

34%

2020

South Africa Australia

2020

63%

37%

2020

South Africa Australia

2021

65%

35%

Revenue contribution
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CARL GRILLENBERGER (77)

Non-executive chairman
B.Com CA(SA), MBA 

Carl is a director of various associated and subsidiary companies in 

Australia and South Africa. He has gained substantial knowledge of the 

healthcare industry in various countries and is well equipped to manage 

organisations involved with services rendered by private hospitals and day 

hospitals. Carl was appointed as the chairman of the board on 28 August 

2019 after serving as the CEO of the company since inception.

DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

GERHARD VAN EMMENIS (59)

Chief executive officer (“CEO”)
B.Com (Hons), M.Com, Postgraduate Diploma in Healthcare Management 

(UK)

Gerhard has an M.Com qualification from the University of Pretoria and a 

Diploma in Healthcare Management from the University of Luton. He has 

extensive experience in the healthcare industry. He is no stranger to the 

management of medical schemes, and was principal officer of two others 

before joining Bonitas Medical Fund. He spent 16 years at Bonitas as the 

chief operations officer and leading the fund to a financially sound and 

sustainable position. He was appointed as the CEO on 1 August 2019.

SINENHLANHLA CHONCO (35)

Chief financial officer (“CFO”).
B.Com (Hons), CA(SA), Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration

Sinenhlanhla is a Chartered Accountant with 12 years experience within 

the medical and manufacturing industry. She was appointed as the Group 

Chief Financial Officer on 1 February 2020. She also holds a postgraduate 

diploma in business administration. She joined Advanced from Medicross 

where she served as Senior Financial Manager. 
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PHILIP JAFFE (81)

Independent non-executive director
B.Com, CA(SA), HDip Tax, CA (Australia)

Philip was the senior partner and subsequently chairman of Moores 

Rowland, Johannesburg and served on the boards of a number of public 

companies. He has a wealth of experience which includes over 35 years 

in public practice and involvement in the listing of approximately 20 

companies on the JSE and the original secondary market. He has also 

served as an independent non-executive director of Presmed Australia 

Limited and its controlled subsidiaries for nearly 20 years.

MARC RESNIK (63)

Managing director Presmed Australia
(“MD of Presmed”), Dip Pharm (SA)

Marc is a business executive, with more than 40 years’ experience in 

the pharmacy and healthcare sector, involving directorship positions 

and ownerships in both public listed healthcare companies and private 

companies. Marc is the Managing Director of Presmed Australia, a 

healthcare company that invests in and specialises in the establishment 

and the management of private day hospital facilities in Australia, with 

a focus on specialties of Ophthalmology surgery; Ear, Nose and Throat 

Surgery; Oral and Maxillofacial surgery.

FRANS VAN HOOGSTRATEN (73)

Lead independent non-executive director
Dip. Law (UCT)

Frans has been practising as an attorney, notary public and conveyancer 

since 1974, and is a retired director of Bowman Gilfillan Inc. of Sandton 

where he practised in the firm’s corporate department. He is an 

experienced commercial attorney and has acted in a large number of 

major commercial transactions for both local and international corporate 

clients. He served as chairman of the company after its inception but 

resigned from this role on 28 August 2019 to serve as lead independent 

non-executive director.
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COR VAN ZYL (74)

Independent non-executive director
B.Com (Hons), CA(SA)

Cor is a chartered accountant with 22 years’ experience obtained in the 

auditing profession as a partner of Coopers & Lybrand, before moving 

into commerce for a further 14 years. This included five years as financial 

director of Afrox Healthcare Limited, as financial director of African 

Oxygen Limited for six years and at Advanced for three years. He currently 

serves as a non-executive on various boards.

DR KGAO LEGODI (48)

Independent non-executive director
MBCHB (MEDUNSA), FCS (Ophth) Natal SA

Dr Legodi graduated from Medunsa (Medical University of South Africa) in 

1996. After his internship at Tintswalo Hospital he worked as a Medical Officer 

at Voortrekker Hospital. He then joined the Ophthalmology residency program 

from 1999 to July 2003 at Nelson Mandela Medical School under Professor 

Anne Peters. He is currently working at Advanced Groenkloof clinic, Advanced 

Soweto clinic and Medforum medi-clinic in Pretoria. He was also engaged with 

sessional work at Pretoria Academic Hospital (Steve Biko) in teaching and 

training retina.

Next to his medical practice, Dr Legodi is involved locally in many positions, 

as part of his active role to improve the ophthalmology service in South Africa 

and Africa. He is the first black immediate past President of Ophthalmology 

Society Of South Africa (OSSA) and First African World Ophthalmology 

Congress 2020 President. Dr Legodi is a member of various other societies.

DR TOMMY MTHEMBU (59)

Independent non-executive director
MBBCh (Rand), FCOpth (SA)

Tommy holds MBBch and FCOpth qualifications. He worked in private 

practice as a general practitioner from 1992 to 1996. In 2001, he qualified 

as an ophthalmologist and is practising as such. He is also an ardent 

businessman with a keen interest in day hospitals.
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DR JOHAN OELOFSE (52)

Independent non-executive director
MBChB

Johan qualified as a medical doctor at Stellenbosch University, after 

which he worked in England, Wales and New Zealand for three years. 

After returning to South Africa, he completed his diploma in anaesthetics 

and then changed his focus to ophthalmology before venturing off into 

the healthcare business environment. He is the co-founder of Spesnet. 

COBUS VISSER (54)

Independent non-executive director
BLC, LLB (UP)

Cobus obtained a BLC LLB degree from the University of Pretoria in 1989.  

He commenced articles with Gildenhuys van der Merwe Inc. in 1990 and 

became a partner in 1994.  He continued in practice until 1998, after which 

he joined Bremer Investments.  He was appointed as managing director in 

2000 and still serves in this capacity. He currently serves as chairman and 

member of a number of boards

MARI-LOUISE STOLTZ (40)

Company secretary
BCom (Hons) Acc, CTA, M.Comm (Tax) 

Mari-Louise graduated at the North West University with a BCom (Hons) 

Acc and CTA and completed her M.Comm (Tax) shortly after. She is a 

registered professional accountant with 16 years’ experience in the 

financial industry. She joined Advanced as company secretary in 2014.

DORENA GOSS-ROSS (53)

Alternate to G van Emmenis
BA, Diplomas in Business Management and Healthcare Risk Management

Dorena graduated from University of Nelson Mandela. She entered the 

healthcare industry in 1994. She has a wealth of experience within the 

private hospital sector across all areas of service delivery. She is a director 

of the Day Hospital Association. She was appointed as Chief Operating 

Officer at Advanced 2017.
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

Looking back at my close to 60 

years in business I must start by 

stating that the past two years 

have been the most difficult I 

have experienced in my career. 

I am however proud to state that 

with the support of my board of 

directors and our management team, we had to plan, 

invent, and implement strategies, never thought of 

before. This was not only due to Covid-19 but also due 

to an environment which restricted Advanced from 

competing in a free and open economy.

To survive we had to lay off staff, close our largest loss-

making facility and tighten our belts to preserve our 

limited cash resources. Today, I am proud to state that the 

ongoing positive support generated by our management, 

the staff at our central office as well as the managers of all 

our facilities was an absolute motivation to me. I believe 

that the difficulties which we had to overcome was part 

of the inspiration which help us to build a strong and 

resilient team, which is stimulated to move Advanced into 

a brighter future.

I would like to start this year’s report by pointing out the 

hard work done by Gerhard van Emmenis, our CEO who 

accepted the Advanced leadership role at a time when the 

future and survival of Advanced was seriously questioned. 

Gerhard, I thank you, for joining our team and for staying 

calm and committed under 

difficult circumstances. To Marc 

Resnik the managing director 

of our Australian operations, 

thanks for steering and growing 

our Australian based subsidiaries 

from strength to strength. If it 

was not for your involvement as 

well as the involvement of our 

Australian board of directors and 

management team, Advanced would not have been able 

to reflect the turnaround that we have seen over the past 

18 months. 

My thanks and appreciation to the doctors who have 

supported our facilities, during a time when Covid-19 

related restrictions forced them to look for alternative 

surgical facilities in which to treat their patients. We are 

thankful for their decision to make Advanced their surgical 

partner under these difficult circumstances. During the 

past year we have enjoyed the support of senior specialists, 

many of whom, are linked to universities, and other well-

known specialists who have, opted to treat their patients 

in our facilities. It must be noted that more than 75% of 

all surgical interventions can now be attended to in day 

hospitals.
Carl Grillenberger
Chairman
8 October 2021

During the past year we have in partnership with 

government organisations attended to patients which 

at the said point in time could not be treated in their 

government facilities. In this regard I am proud to 

announce that both, in South Africa and in Australia we 

have helped with the treatment of waiting list patients in 

four of our facilities. The experience gained reflects the 

cost effectiveness of Advanced as well as the potential to 

work pro-actively with governments. In this respect we are 

committed to work with the South African Government, 

relating to its National Health Insurance (“NHI”) objectives, 

provided that these are implemented cost effectively.

I would not be doing any justice by not thanking our 

staff for their loyalty and dedication during the past 18 

months. During this period our management and staff had 

to implement strategies, previously unheard of, relating 

to the protection of patients, doctors, and our own staff 

while we offered our services under strict pandemic-based 

conditions. Substantial additional costs had to be incurred 

with the planning of new and revised strategies as well as 

the provision of personal protection equipment (“PPE”), to 

ensure the safety of all our stakeholders.  

A special word of thanks to those shareholders who 

were prepared to support Advanced under difficult 

circumstances and who supported our rights offer, earlier 

this year. I would like to assure you that the future for 

Advanced now looks much brighter than a year ago. I thank 

you for your courage and continued support. The future 

for day surgery has as a result of 

Covid-19 clearly been identified as 

an alternative to hospitalisation. 

Advanced has got the potential 

to grow the treatment of patients 

cost effectively in an environment 

where costs are predicted to 

escalate. The support coming from 

surgeons and patients benefits 

our day hospitals and also the medical scheme movement. 

The funders of our healthcare systems have identified day 

hospitals as a safe and cost-effective environment for the 

treatment of their members. Over the past few years, the 

day surgery industry has experienced substantial growth 

locally as well as internationally and is tipped as a growth 

industry for the future. Procedures which previously were 

attended to in hospitals only and which were associated 

with intensive care services, can these days safely be 

performed in day hospitals. The quality of our services as 

well as the care of our patients still remains our primary 

objective.

Over the past few years, the day surgery 

industry has experienced substantial 

growth locally as well as internationally and 

is tipped as a growth industry for the future.
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CEO’S REPORT

Covid-19 has significantly changed 

the landscape of society, the 

economy, and the healthcare 

industry around the world 

for good. The South African 

healthcare system was severely 

challenged, and, in many instances, 

the government, businesses and its people were not 

adequately prepared, nor able to respond timeously 

and sufficiently to provide peace of mind to the 

citizens in South Africa. 

In Australia, although also not knowing how the pandemic 

would affect the country, the government initially 

responded assertively, but in many ways correctly, to 

restrict the movement in and out of the country, and 

minimise the risk of Covid spreading rampantly across the 

country. My colleague, CEO of PMA Marc Resnik and his 

team, immediately put plans and contingencies in place 

and despite the uncertain environment, were still able to 

grow the business and exceed both their budget targets 

and against last year.

AHSA had to survive to be part of the bigger picture of 

Advanced, which I am pleased to advise that they did. 

Despite AHSA being built over the years with craftmanship 

and a well-engineered business model by my predecessor, 

it was time for AHSA to learn new lessons for the new 

landscape in which it found itself. What was striking in the 

South African context was that there were three distinct 

responses namely:

1. Three of our facilities outperformed all expectations 

during COVID-19 pandemic;

2. One facility was disposed of during the year, one is 

closed; and

3. The other six survived through resilience as we started 

to embrace new technology on a larger scale and 

reinvented ourselves by including the concept of a 

“centre of excellence” at these facilities.

Gerhard van Emmenis
CEO
8 October 2021

Our change in direction, with new technology being 

pivotal, yet not exclusively centres of excellence has been 

well received by our clients namely, the medical schemes. 

The idea of a centre of excellence is driven by multi-

disciplines at each centre. Orthopaedic procedures and 

back pain management are leading the change process in 

this new technology.

In Australia, PMA is actively engaging the day hospital 

market to geographically expand their existing footprint 

which will allow the business to grow and increase its value 

while attending to the needs of society. 

South African facilities still have a road to travel to 

consolidate and convert all the facilities into profitable 

entities and optimising theatre capacity while looking 

to future growth, hopefully not in the too distant future. 

There is a strong focus on doctor involvement / influence 

as the importance of doctors in the hospital business has 

been left by the wayside for far too long. We are creating 

a new business partnership with our doctors that will align 

our common interests even further, as our colleagues in 

Australia have done over the years. 

I am grateful to both Australia’s and South Africa’s 

management teams that stepped up when called upon to 

do so. I am looking forward to the opportunity of being 

part of your spirit and teamwork. The Board has illustrated 

trust and support in us while displaying leadership in 

difficult times, for that we thank you.

AHSA had to survive to be part of the bigger 

picture of Advanced, which I am pleased to 

advise that they did. 
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OPERATIONS

SOUTH AFRICAN  
FACILITIES IN A NUTSHELL:

MAJOR SHAREHOLDER
in 10 day hospitals

OVER 20,000
patient surgeries

152
number of employees

OVER 400
accredited surgeons

OVER 200
licenced beds

Advanced is provider of day surgery services at 

extremely competitive rates for patients and medical 

schemes through its network of day hospitals. 

Modern, compact and well-equipped day hospitals 

provide short-procedure surgical services and diagnostic 

procedures in a sterile environment on a same-day basis.

 

More than 75 percent of all surgical interventions can be 

performed on a same-day basis in day hospitals,  but the 

numbers are still less than 20% in South Africa.  There has 

been an increase of volumes to day hospitals over the last 

five years, but it will take some time for day hospitals in 

South Africa to obtain a ratio with more same day surgeries 

performed in a day hospital compared to an acute hospital, 

like abroad. 

 

We add value by focusing on the basics of nursing care – 

by respecting time limitations and to ensure efficiencies in 

our hospitals.  We concentrate on focused management, 

staff and a centralised head office structure to provide 

financial services, networking and information technology.  

We believe that informed decisions must be made by 

patients and specialists to create choices for patients on 

the most appropriate place for the type of surgery. Just 

like a psychiatric hospital specialises in a specific field 

and expertise, so do day hospitals, who are specifically 

equipped in a small environment to ensure efficiency levels 

and proper time management.    

Despite the  growth in the number of day hospitals in South 

Africa over the last 5 years, the number of day hospitals 

outweigh the acute hospitals abroad. In South Africa, there 

are a larger number of acute hospitals compared to day 

hospitals.  

Our business model to offer shareholding to doctors in our 

hospitals has created a valuable chain of support with like-

minded specialists.  

The Advanced hospitals are supported by an experienced 

centralised team to ensure productivity, positive outcomes, 

support and shared structures resulting in cost effective 

management.  The core focus remains within our logo’s 

three drops to represent staff, doctors and patients. Our 

business will not exist if it was not for the three pillars.   

Patient experiences are measured and the management 

team work closely with doctors to ensure effective and 

efficient care.   The staff component is exceptional and 

we are particularly proud of the team spirit and culture  

which were displayed by the members of our staff during a 

very difficult year where they had to function productively, 

despite the doubt and uncertainty.  
Dorena Goss-Ross
Chief Operations Officer (South Africa)
8 October 2021

The challenges of this year came with some difficult 

decisions, but we believe we are gaining traction in the 

support on why we are in the healthcare industry. The 

support from funders aligning themselves with the day 

hospital concept is supportive of the fact that we are on 

the right path. We have succeeded in entrenching our 

organisation as a cost effective provider of same day 

surgery.  In this highly competitive market and evolving 

industry, we are revising our strategy and will restore trust 

among all stakeholders and we have no doubt we are on 

the right track.  

In conclusion, I salute our supporting doctors and our 

dedicated staff for their loyalty, commitment and we know 

that our success path will continue and we will be the day 

hospital group who proves to be different – who proves to 

add value.  This is the core of why we exist.
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 OVERVIEW OF PRESMED
 

In Australia, the day hospital industry remains a strong and 

viable business sector in the healthcare system, with over 

40% of the Australian population having private healthcare 

cover. Day hospitals remain the competitive option for 

private patients compared to overnight hospitals, with 

Presmed positioning itself well in this industry. 

The 2021 financial year has exceeded expectations when 

measured against prior year.

• Patient numbers are 33% ahead of last year

• Revenue up 51% when compared to prior year

• EBITDA up by 113% when compared to prior year

The key factors for these results are due to:

• The ongoing support from specialists who continue to 

push through surgeries at the Presmed day hospitals

• The initial few months of the 2021 financial year 

experienced an increase in patient surgeries from the 

backlog of patients that could not be operated during 

the last quarter of the 2020 financial year as per 

government COVID-19 restrictions that were in place.

• Surgeons not taking annual leave due to COVID-19, 

thus additional surgeries done.

Presmed continues to be recognised as a key player 

within the industry, maintaining its position as setting 

premium standards within the day hospital market. This 

is achieved through the successful introduction of an In-

House Ophthalmic Nurse Program, the Ophthalmologist 

Registrar Training Program, affiliation with the University of 

Sydney as a Teaching Hospital Group and the retention of 

Chatswood Private Hospital as the only Australian private 

hospital member of the World Association of Eye Hospitals. 

Presmed is the major shareholder of four day hospitals and 

a minority shareholder in one day hospital in New South 

Wales (NSW), having management contracts in place at 

each one, plus an additional management contract in the 

only eye laser clinic in the Central Coast area of NSW. The 

existing facilities of Central Coast Surgery Centre, Madison 

Day Surgery, Epping Surgery Centre and Chatswood 

Private Hospital continue to exceed expectations.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDER
in 4 day hospitals

MANAGEMENT
CONTRACT

in controlled entities

OVER 14,500
patient surgeries

MINOR 
SHAREHOLDER

in 1 day hospital

OVER 130
accredited surgeons

ACHIEVED 100,000
patient milestone

AUSTRALIAN FACILITIES IN A NUTSHELL:

RANZCO*
accredited registrar 

training

TEACHING 
HOSPITAL
with University

of Sydney

WAEH*

First Australian 

private member of

CPD TESTS

Accredited  

Optemitrist online

96%
patient satisfaction

* RANZCO – The Royal Australian and New Zealand College of 
Ophthalmologists. 

* WAEH – World Association of Eye Hospitals
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management and mitigation measures

Healthcare 

during the 

Covid-19 

pandemic

The Strict Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”) protocols were put in place at all day hospitals 

which include mandatory screening of patients. Compulsory testing of all patients before surgery 

and only negative patients are allowed. Stricter admission processes were implemented as well as 

improved access control to facilities and a no visitor policy. Staff were also regularly tested using 

the RAPID ANTIGEN TESTING KITS for COVID-19. Management implemented different strategies to 

secure surgery throughput, including constant communication with surgeons to ensure that those 

who were able to operate continued to bring surgery through to our hospitals.

Maintaining 

business 

sustainability

Continuous improvement of processes at facilities to increase patient numbers and the number 

of procedures done. To mitigate the risk of doctors moving work to other facilities shareholding 

is offered to surgeons to increase their involvement and commitment to our facilities. We are 

continuously busy with marketing and medical aid engagements to secure specialists and patients.

Retention and 

attraction of 

key clinical 

staff

Although the restructuring process resulted in some resignations, majority of our staff are loyal and 

committed and we have secured sufficient agency staff when facilities increase their activities. We 

have a formal recruitment and retention plan in place.

Clinical risk 

of patient 

incidents

We ensure that accredited doctors with appropriate licences and qualifications operate at our 

facilities. Well trained nursing and clinical staff is appointed. All equipment are well maintained and 

the proper procedures for admission, surgery and recovery have been put in place and are strictly 

adhered to.

Security of IT 

systems

We have outsourced our Information Technology (“IT”) department to ensure compliance to 

internal controls and to ensure that all security measures are in place. Various policies have been 

implemented to assist with the security of our IT systems.

Cash flow 

and liquidity 

management

The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is dependent on the directors procuring 

funding for the ongoing operations of the Group. Management have also implemented other 

strategies to reduce the liquidity risk, these include constant review of cash flow forecast. The 

company had a rights issue in April 2021 as a strategy to overcome liquidity issues mainly from the 

South African operations which are making losses. Proceeds of R50.6 million was received from the 

issue of shares, part of the proceeds was used to settled debt to reduce interest payments. 

Strategies to increase liquidity leakages have been implemented within the South Africa operations 

which included a sale of the loss making Vergelegen Surgical Centre.

Various 

laws and 

regulations

We make use of external consultants where expertise is not available in-house to ensure compliance 

to applicable laws and regulations in both South Africa and Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

INTRODUCTION 
The directors of Advanced and senior management across 

the Group are committed to the highest standards of 

corporate governance. As corporate governance is constantly 

evolving, Advanced continually focuses on seeking ways to 

improve on its corporate governance standards. The board 

endorses the King IV™ Report (“King IV”) and recognises 

its responsibility to conduct the affairs of Advanced with 

integrity and accountability in accordance with King IV. 

This includes timely, relevant and meaningful reporting to 

its shareholders and other stakeholders, providing a proper 

and objective perspective of Advanced. This is done through 

SENS Announcements via the Johannesburg Stock Exchange 

(“JSE”).

The board, assisted by the audit and risk committee, social 

and ethics committee, as well as the remuneration committee 

is responsible for overall corporate governance and monitors 

compliance with all applicable laws, rules, codes, standards 

and the JSE Listings Requirements. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The board meets regularly and discloses the number of 

meetings held each year in this Integrated Annual Report, 

together with the attendance at such meetings. A formal 

record is kept of all conclusions reached by the board on 

matters referred to it for discussion. Should the board require 

independent professional advice, procedures have been put 

in place for such advice to be sought at the Group’s expense.

The chairman ensures the overall effectiveness of the board 

and its committees through: 

• providing effective leadership;

• maintaining ethical standards and being responsible, 

accountable, fair and transparent; and

• ensuring that strategies are developed and implemented 

with the objective of achieving sustainable, economic, 

social and environmental performance.

The board is responsible for relations with stakeholders, as 

well as being accountable to them for the performance of the 

company and reporting thereon in a timely and transparent 

manner.
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BOARD COMPOSITION
The board comprises twelve directors, with eight non- 

executive directors, seven of whom are independent, one 

who is not independent and four executive directors of which 

one is an alternate to the CEO.

BOARD APPOINTMENTS
The appointment of directors, including the CEO, is 

undertaken in a formal and transparent manner by the 

nomination committee which reports to the board. Curricula 

vitae are obtained and circulated to all board members with 

specific consideration given to our board diversity policy, 

that includes the promotion of gender and race diversity. 

Interviews are conducted with the shortlisted candidates. 

Appointments are then made by a board resolution upon 

a recommendation from the nominations committee. Final 

approval of appointments is done at the Annual General 

Meeting (“AGM”).

On first appointment, all directors are expected to undergo 

appropriate training as to the company’s business, strategic 

plans and objectives, and other relevant laws and regulations 

in accordance with JSE Listings Requirements. This will be 

performed on an ongoing basis to ensure that directors 

remain abreast of changes in regulations and the commercial 

environment.

All non-executive directors are subject to retirement by 

rotation and re-election by shareholders at least once every 

three years. 

There was no change in the board composition in the current 

year.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO
The offices of chairman and CEO are separate and fulfilled 

by two individuals. As at 30 June 2021, the Chairman was 

Carl Grillenberger, and the CEO was Gerhard van Emmenis. 

Frans van Hoogstraten is the lead independent non-executive 

director. The division of responsibilities at top level ensures 

a balance of power and authority, with no individual having 

unrestricted decision-making powers.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
A board charter, which is reviewed annually, has been adopted 

to guide the board in governance issues and sets a framework 

within which the board functions. The board charter sets out 

the board’s duties and obligations.

The board is responsible for overseeing the preparation, 

integrity and fair presentation of the annual financial 

statements and related information included in the integrated 

annual report. The board is ultimately responsible for ensuring 

that adequate accounting records and effective systems 

of internal control are being maintained. Furthermore, 

management shall supply the board with the relevant 

information needed to fulfill its duties. Directors make further 

enquiries where necessary, and thus have unrestricted access 

to all Group information, records, documents and property. 

Not only does the board look at the quantitative performance 

of Advanced, but also at issues such as patient satisfaction, 

market share, environmental performance and other relevant 

issues.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The board is required to have policies on the promotion 

of gender, race, culture, age, field of knowledge, skills and 

experience at board level.

At present, such policies have been established and the board 

is committed to the undertakings in the policy and has already 

made changes to the board to include one black female and 

one black male member to the board.

BOARD EVALUATION
The board is evaluated on an annual basis. The directors believe 

the board has operated effectively and that governance 

processes and practices are appropriate for the nature and 

complexity of the business.

INDEPENDENCE ASSESSMENT
Annually, the board considers each non-executive director’s 

independence, as appropriate, in terms of the Companies 

Act 71 of 2008 (“Companies Act”) and the recommendations 

of King IV. These assessments have determined that the 

independent directors are still independent.

BOARD OVERSIGHT
The directors have delegated governance responsibilities to 

committees to assist the board in meeting its requirements. 

The composition of these committees conforms to the 

recommendations of King IV and is reflected in the meeting 

attendance table below.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST
A full list of  directors’  interests  is  maintained, and directors 

certify that the list is correct at each board meeting.

Directors recuse themselves from discussions and decisions 

on matters in which they have a material financial interest. 

There were no director’s interest in the contracts that were 

entered into in the current year.

DEALING IN SECURITIES BY  
THE DIRECTORS
The board has adopted a policy regarding the legislation 

which regulates insider trading, whereby there is a closed 

period from the date of the financial year end to the earliest 
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1 Independent non-executive directors

2 Attended via invitation

BOARD AND SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE 2019/2020

Director Board Social and ethics 
Remuneration 

and nomination
Audit and risk

Frans van Hoogstraten 

(chairman of the nominations 

and remuneration committee) 
1

4/7 - 5/5 2/3

Carl Grillenberger (chairman of 

the board) 
7/7 - 5/5 3/3 

2

Cor van Zyl (chairman of the 

audit and risk committee) 
1

6/7 - - 3/3

Marc Resnik 6/7 - - -

Philip Jaffe
 1

7/7 - - 3/3

Dr Tommy Mthembu (chairman 

of the social and ethics 

committee) 
1

5/7 1/1 - -

Dr Johan Oelofse 
1

7/7 - - -

Cobus Visser 
1

6/7 - - 3/3

Gerhard van Emmenis 7/7 1/1 
2

5/5 3/3 
2

Bibi Goss-Ross (alternate) 7/7 1/1 - -

Dr Kgao Legodi 
1 

7/7 - - -

Sinenhlanhla Chonco 7/7 - - 3/3 
2

publication of the preliminary report, the abridged report or 

the provisional report in the case of results for a full period 

and from the date of the interim period end to the date of 

the publication of the first and second interim results as the 

case may be.

The company secretary or such person as may be nominated 

from time to time shall keep a record of all dealings by 

directors in the securities of the company.

REMUNERATION AND  
DIRECTORS’ FEES
Details on remuneration of executive and non-executive 

directors are provided in note 32 of the report. 
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
A combined audit and risk committee has been established, 

with the primary objective of providing the board with 

additional assurance regarding the usefulness and reliability 

of the financial information used by the directors, to assist 

them in performing their duties. The committee is required to 

provide assurance to the board that adequate and appropriate 

financial and operating controls are in place, that significant 

business, financial and other risks have been identified and 

are being suitably managed, that the CFO has the appropriate 

expertise and experience, and that satisfactory standards of 

governance, reporting and compliance are in operation.  The 

committee sets the principles for recommending the use of 

the external consultants for non-audit services.

The audit and risk committee are satisfied that no breakdown 

in accounting controls, procedures or systems has occurred 

during the year under review. This was discussed during a 

meeting with management. In fulfilling its responsibility of 

monitoring the integrity of financial reports to shareholders, 

the audit and risk committee has reviewed accounting 

principles, policies and practices adopted in the preparation 

of financial information and has examined documentation 

relating to the integrated annual report. The committee also 

has considered the most recent JSE proactive monitoring 

report and ensure this was communicated to all involved to 

ensure compliance.

The independent non-executive directors appointed to 

the combined audit and risk committee for the year ended 

30 June 2021 were Cor van Zyl (chairman), Frans van 

Hoogstraten, Cobus Visser and Phil Jaffe. Their independence 

has been reviewed by the board. The Chairman, CEO, CFO 

and external auditor attend the meetings by invitation and 

do not have a vote. The statutory report of the committee 

appears on page 28-30.

In September 2020, the audit and risk committee formally 

evaluated the performance and effectiveness of the external 

auditor in terms of King IV and the JSE Listings Requirements. 

It confirmed the suitability and effectiveness of the external 

auditor and nominated Mazars and Gerhard de Beer for 

reappointment as external auditor for the coming financial 

year, having satisfied itself that the firm and its individual 

auditors are properly accredited and independent.

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
The nomination committee is integrated to the remunerations 

committee. The current committee members are Frans van 

Hoogstraten (chairman), Gerhard van Emmenis and Carl 

Grillenberger. 

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
The company has a social and ethics committee, in 

compliance with the statutory requirements as contained in 

the Companies Act and the Companies Regulations. This is 

a formal committee of the board which has specific power 

delegated to it by the board. The four main responsibilities 

of the social and ethics committee are social and economic 

development, good corporate citizenship, consumer relations 

and labour and employment. The committee invites executives 

and senior managers of the Group to attend meetings in 

order to perform its mandate.

The members of the committee are Dr Tommy Mthembu 

(Chairman), Dorena Goss-Ross, Frans van Hoogstraten, Carl 

Grillenberger and Sinenhlanhla Chonco. 

The Human Resources department ensures annually that an 

employment equity report is submitted for the South African 

operations to the Department of Labour. The Group has an 

employment equity plan for the South African operations 

that they have already started implementing especially when 

looking at new appointments.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The company has a remuneration committee, in compliance 

with the statutory requirements as contained in the 

Companies Act and the Companies Regulations. This is a 

formal committee of the board which has specific power 

delegated to it by the board. Details of directors’ fees and 

remuneration are fully disclosed in the annual financial 

statements. In addition, the proposed fees to be paid to 

non-executive directors for approval by shareholders by 

way of a special resolution are set out in the notice of the 

AGM. Directors serving as members on board committees 

receive additional remuneration.

Remuneration of executive directors in their capacities as 

executive members of the management team, as approved 

by the committee, is fully disclosed in the consolidated 

annual financial statements. The committee invites 

executives and senior managers of the Group to attend 

meetings in order to perform its mandate.

The current committee members are Frans van Hoogstraten 

(chairman), Gerhard van Emmenis and Carl Grillenberger. 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY 
A remuneration policy is in place to incentivise executive 

directors.  Remuneration is market related.
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In order for the company to be the industry leader, an 

attractive remuneration strategy should be in place to 

attract individuals with the required skills.

General guidelines for the Group’s 

incentive pay to the board and executive 

management.  

Non-executive remuneration must be approved upfront 

by the shareholders at the AGM. Executive directors’ 

remuneration currently comprises some of the following 

elements:

1. Basic salary

2. Additional fees

3. Benefits – incentive bonus scheme

4. Share options

5. Other benefits

Basic salary is subject to annual reviews and dependent 

on the Group’s performance.

Additional fees are payable for attendance of meetings 

and additional time spent on behalf of the Group  

(refer to note 32).

Benefits comprise participation in the Group’s incentive 

bonus scheme (refer to note 32).

Share options (refer to note 19).

Other benefits are granted at the discretion of the board.  

These will include fringe benefits payable to directors.

Service contracts and compensation

Advanced has entered market related service contracts 

with all of its executive directors.  All non-executive 

directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-

election by Advanced’s shareholders at least once every 

three years in accordance with the Memorandum of 

Incorporation (“MOI”).

Implementation

Executive management is responsible for the preparation 

and presentation of remuneration adjustments to the 

remuneration committee for review and approval. Once 

approved, management will implement the changes.   

Refer to note 32 for details on the directors’ remuneration.  

Executive directors took temporary salary reduction in 

response to COVID-19 and cash flow challenges that 

were within the South African operations.  Non-executive 

directors partially waived their fees as a result of COVID-19 

and cash flow challenges.

The remuneration structure as explained in this report is 

tabled to shareholders for separate non-binding advisory 

votes at the AGM, to allow shareholders to express their 

views on the remuneration structure.

During the previous AGM 99.717% of shareholders 

approved the remuneration structure.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Group’s company secretary is responsible for 

administering the proceedings and affairs of the directorate, 

the Group and, where appropriate, owners of securities 

in the Group, in accordance with the relevant laws. The 

company secretary is available to assist all directors 

with advice on their responsibilities, their professional 

development and any other relevant assistance they may 

require.

Based on a formal assessment, which included the review of 

the Group company secretary’s qualifications, experience 

and demonstration of competence in execution of the 

above mentioned functions, the board is of the opinion 

that Mari-Louise Stoltz, the Group company secretary, 

possesses the requisite competence, qualifications and 

experience and has confirmed that she is suitably qualified, 

competent and experienced to hold the position of Group 

company secretary. She is a registered accountant with 

the South African Institute of Professional Accountants 

with 16 years of experience and holds the following 

degrees: B.Com (Hons) and M.Comm Tax. The academic 

and professional qualifications of the Group company 

secretary were externally verified prior to her appointment.

The company secretary is not an executive director, nor 

is she related to or connected to any of the directors. 

The board is satisfied that she is independent and that 

all transactions with the company secretary are at arm’s 

length.

EXTERNAL AUDIT
There was no internal audit during the year under review. 

The directors mitigated the risk of not having an internal 

audit department by ensuring that internal controls were 

implemented and upheld in the current year. 

The auditors of the Group are Mazars and they have 

performed  an  independent  and  objective  audit of the 

Group’s annual financial statements. The statements are 

prepared in terms of the International Financial Reporting 

Standard (“IFRS”), the Financial Pronouncements as 

issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the 

JSE Listings Requirements and the Companies Act.

COMMUNICATION WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS
Advanced meets with its shareholders and investment 

analysts on a regular basis to provide presentations on 

the Group and its performance over and above the Stock 

Exchange News Service (“SENS”) announcements made 

throughout the year.
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ADVICE 
All directors have access to the advice and services of 

the company secretary who, inter alia, advises the board 

and its committees on issues relating to compliance, 

the JSE Listings Requirements and King IV. Directors 

are furthermore, with the prior knowledge of the CEO, 

entitled to ask any questions of any personnel and 

enjoy unrestricted access to all Group documentation, 

information and property.

APPLICATION OF KING IV 
For the period ended 30 June 2021, Advanced fully implemented and disclosed hereto all the principles on good corporate 

governance as provided for under King IV.

Principle 1 Leadership

The board should lead 

ethically and effectively.

Formal in-house assessments regarding the effectiveness of the board are conducted 

annually and reviewed by the company secretary. Inconsistencies are discussed with 

the chairman and addressed. From the evaluation performed, no concerns were raised 

regarding the board not leading ethically and effectively.

At each board meeting, the required disclosure by directors to the company of their 

interests is set as a standard agenda item. Information regarding directors’ interests is 

set out in the annual financial statements.

All necessary information, including a detailed board pack, is provided to directors to 

ensure that board members have sufficient time to prepare for the meetings and to make 

informed decisions.

Principle 2 Organisational values and ethics

The board should 

govern the ethics of 

the organisation in a 

way that supports the 

establishment of an 

ethical culture.

While the board exercises ongoing oversight, it has delegated the governance of ethics, 

monitoring, implementation and management of Advanced’s activities to the social and 

ethics committee and the management thereof.

Principle 3 Responsible corporate citizenship

The board should ensure 

that the organisation 

is, and is seen to be, a 

responsible corporate 

citizen.

In accordance with the board’s responsibility of ensuring that Advanced conducts itself 

as a good corporate citizen, the social and ethics committee has been mandated with 

the responsibility for monitoring and reporting on responsible corporate citizenship.

Principle 4 Strategy, implementation and performance

The board should 

appreciate that the 

organisation’s core 

purpose, its risks and 

opportunities, strategy, 

business model, 

performance and 

sustainable development 

are all inseparable 

elements of the value 

creation process.

At least once a year, Advanced’s board reviews goals, strategies and risks, and how to 

mitigate them. The board approves the annual budget against which the performance 

and progress of the Group is measured.

At each quarterly meeting, the board assesses the general viability, performance, 

solvency and liquidity, and going concern status of Advanced.

With the current economic climate the board holds regular meetings to discuss the 

above and strategize on the way forward for the Group.
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Principle 5 Reports and disclosure

The board should ensure 

that reports issued by 

the organisation enable 

stakeholders to make 

informed assessments 

of the organisation’s 

performance and its 

short-, medium- and long-

term prospects.

The Advanced annual report is prepared in line with recognised local and international 

guidelines including IFRS, Financial Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting 

Standards Council, Companies Act, the reporting principles contained in King IV and the 

JSE Limited Listing Requirements, and the principles  published on Advanced’s website.

The audit and risk committee reviews these externally published reports and recommends 

approval thereof to the board to ensure that the integrated annual report provides 

accurate, complete and integrated representation of the Group. The external auditor 

audits the annual financial statements in line with International Auditing Standards and 

presents their findings to the audit and risk committee.

Principle 6 Role of the board

The board should serve 

as the focal point and 

custodian of corporate 

governance in the 

organisation.

The board has an approved charter which it reviews annually. Amongst the responsibilities, 

the board reviews the company’s and the board’s corporate governance performance 

and approved the opperational  plan for the following year.

Through its committees, the board oversees the implementation of governance practices 

throughout the Group. The committees as established by the board during the reporting 

period (details are discussed in the corporate governance report), and the board is 

satisfied that it has fulfilled its primary role and responsibilities in relation to governance 

in accordance with its charter.

Principle 7 Composition of the board

The board should 

comprise the appropriate 

balance of knowledge, 

skills, experience, diversity 

and independence 

for it to discharge its 

governance role and 

responsibilities objectively 

and effectively.

The composition of the board is appropriate for the nature, complexity and strategic 

demands of the Group, and provides the optimal mix of knowledge, skills, experience, 

independence and diversity. 

Details regarding the composition of the board, assessment of the independence of the 

non-executive directors, induction and the board’s diversity policy are discussed in the 

corporate governance report.

Declarations of interests are tabled at every board meeting.

Annual self-assessments of board effectiveness evaluate the knowledge and skills of 

members, which are then developed, or new appointments made to address any gaps. 

Subject matter experts are available for matters requiring specialised guidance.

Principle 8 Committees of the board

The board should ensure 

that its arrangements 

for delegation within its 

own structures promote 

independent judgement 

and assist with balance of 

power and the effective 

discharge of  

its duties.

The board has three subcommittees assisting in discharging its duties and responsibilities 

as follows:

• Audit and risk committee;

• Social and ethics committee; and

• Remuneration and nominations committee.

Each of the committee chairmen provides feedback to the board on the deliberations 

of the committee meetings. Additional information on the committees and their 

responsibilities is to be found in the corporate governance section of the integrated 

report.
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Principle 9 Evaluations of the performance of the board

The board should ensure 

that the evaluation of its 

own performance and 

that of its committees, 

its chair and its individual 

members, supports 

continued improvement 

in its performance and 

effectiveness.

Formal in-house assessments regarding the effectiveness of the board are conducted 

annually and reviewed by the company secretary. Inconsistencies are discussed with the 

chairman and addressed.

Principle 10 Appointment of and delegation to management

The board should ensure 

that the appointment 

of and delegation to 

management contribute 

to role clarity and 

the effective exercise 

of authority and 

responsibilities.

While retaining overall accountability, and subject to matters reserved to itself, the board 

has delegated authority to the Group CEO to run the day-to-day affairs of the company, 

subject to a delegation of authority framework. The delegation of authority framework 

sets out authority thresholds and governs sub-delegation. The framework also prescribes 

authority levels for each of the territories that the Group operates in.

On an annual basis, the audit and risk committee assess the competence of the finance 

function. An in-depth discussion is held at the audit and risk committee without the 

presence of the CFO and a decision is made. 

Details of the results of the assessment can be found in the audit and risk committee 

report.

Principle 11 Risk governance

The board should govern 

risk in a way that supports 

the organisation in setting 

and achieving its strategic 

objectives.

The board is responsible for the governance of risk across the Group, for setting the risk 

appetite and for monitoring the effectiveness of Advanced’s risk management processes.

This responsibility is delegated to the audit and risk committee, and reviewed by the 

board on an annual basis, or more frequently where required.

Details of risk management have been included in the audit and risk committee report.

Principle 12 Information and technology (IT) governance

The board should govern 

IT in a way that supports 

the organisation in setting 

and achieving its strategic 

objectives.

The board is cognisant of the importance of IT as it is interrelated to the strategy, 

performance and sustainability of the company. The audit and risk committee is 

responsible for IT governance in accordance with King IV. The committee oversees the 

implementation of IT governance mechanisms, IT frameworks, policies, procedures and 

standards to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the Group’s information systems. 

The committee has co-opted an external IT specialist to assist it in governing IT.

Principle 13 Compliance governance

The board should 

govern compliance 

with applicable laws 

and adopted, non-

binding rules, codes and 

standards in a way that 

supports the organisation 

being ethical and a good 

corporate citizen.

In accordance with the board’s responsibility of ensuring that Advanced conducts itself 

as a good corporate citizen, the Group legal advisor has compiled a list of all laws and 

regulations that are applicable to the Group. The Group legal advisor also assists with 

ensuring that the Group complies with these laws and regulations.

The directors are satisfied that Advanced is in compliance with the relevant provisions of 

the Companies Act and is operating in conformity with its MOI.
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Principle 14 Remuneration governance

The board should ensure 

that the organisation 

remunerates fairly, 

responsibly and 

transparently so as to 

promote the achievement 

of strategic objectives and 

positive outcomes in the 

short, medium and long 

term.

The board is ultimately responsible for remuneration but has delegated to the 

remuneration committee the responsibility to ensure that the company remunerates 

fairly, responsibly and transparently for the achievement and promotion of strategic 

objectives over the short, medium and long term.  

During the current year, the board has decided to stop the payment of the board fees to 

the directors for certain months to alleviate the cash flow pressures in the business that 

were caused by COVID-19.

Principle 15 Assurance

The board should ensure 

that assurance services 

and functions enable 

an effective control 

environment, and that 

these support the 

integrity of information 

for internal decision 

making and of the 

organisation’s external 

reports.

The board has delegated to the audit and risk committee oversight and effectiveness of 

the company’s assurance services with focus on combined assurance, including external 

audit, internal audit, the finance function, as well as the integrity of the integrated report 

and the annual financial statements.

The audit and risk committee works closely with the external auditor. Once a year, the 

external auditor communicates the internal control deficiencies identified during the 

audit and how management should address the concerns. The meeting with the external 

audit engagement partner was held on 14 September 2020. 

Principle 16 Stakeholders

In the execution of its 

governance role and 

responsibilities, the 

board should adopt a 

stakeholder-inclusive 

approach that balances 

the needs, interests 

and expectations of 

material stakeholders in 

the best interest of the 

organisation over time.

The board has oversight of stakeholder engagement and management thereof. The board 

ensures that there is constant engagement between management and the shareholders. 

Results presentations are performed at least twice a year to allow investors the chance 

to ask questions to management. The minutes of the AGM held on 29 January 2021 

are publicly available and can be requested from the company secretary. The directors 

attended the AGM to respond to any queries from the shareholders.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY  
AND APPROVAL

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act to 

maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible 

for the content and integrity of the consolidated annual 

financial statements and related financial information 

included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure 

that the consolidated annual financial statements fairly 

present the state of affairs of the Group and company 

as at the end of the financial year and the results of its 

operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in 

conformity with IFRS, the Financial Pronouncements as 

issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the 

JSE Listing Requirements and the Companies Act that are 

relevant to its operations and have been effective for the 

annual reporting period ending 30 June 2021. The external 

auditor is engaged to express an independent opinion on 

the consolidated annual financial statements.

The consolidated annual financial statements have 

been prepared in compliance with IFRS, the Financial 

Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting 

Standards Council, the JSE Listing Requirements and 

the Companies Act which are based upon appropriate 

accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately 

responsible for the system of internal financial control 

established by the Group and place considerable 

importance on maintaining a strong control environment. 

To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the 

board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing 

the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The 

standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities 

within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting 

procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure 

an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 

throughout the Group and all employees are required to 

maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 

Group’s business is conducted in a manner that in all 

reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of 

risk management in the Group is on identifying, assessing, 

managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 

the Group. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, 

the Group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical 

behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 

procedures and constraints. The directors are of the 

opinion, based on the information and explanations 

given by management, that the system of internal control 

provides reasonable assurance that the financial records 

may be relied on for the preparation of the consolidated 

annual financial statements. However, any system of 

internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and 

not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or 

loss.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast 

for the year to 30 June 2022 and, in light of this review 

despite the accumulated loss of R255.3 million (2020: 

R237.2 million), by assessing the forecasts and the future 

plans presented by management they are satisfied that the 

Group will have access to adequate resources to continue 

in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

IMPACT OF COVID-19

South Africa

COVID-19 resulted in a change to the composition of cases 

in a more favorable direction within the South African 

operations. Some of the short-stay cases that were 

traditionally performed at acute facilities have been moved 

to day facilities, because of elective surgery being on hold 

for a longer period in the acute facility to accommodate 

COVID-19 patients in available beds. Revenue per case 

is indicative of this, which has increased by 24% year on 

year, whereas case numbers have increased by only 2%. 

A further indicator of a change of case mix is that theatre 

minutes per case has increased from 38 to 48 minutes.

Disciplines like Ear-Nose and Throat surgery and 

Ophthalmic surgery were negatively impacted by COVID-19 

due to the nature of the procedures. The contribution to 

total revenue and cases have not completely returned to 

the same levels as pre-COVID-19, but contribution to total 

revenue has recovered to 5% (previously 6%). In the first 

9 months of the previous financial year, Ophthalmology 

contributed 18% to total revenue and 14% to total cases. For 

the 12 months which ended 30 June 2021, it contributed 

11% to total cases and 13% to total revenue.
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Sinenhlanhla Chonco 

CFO 

Pretoria 

8 October 2021

Gerhard van Emmenis 

CEO 

Pretoria 

8 October 2021

Australia 

Within the Australian operations, the impact of COVID-19 

pandemic was also seen where in late March 2020, all 

non-urgent elective surgery was temporarily stopped by 

the Australian Government in an attempt to control the 

COVID-19 pandemic.  At the end of April, this was allowed 

to increase using a staggered approach up to 75% by 

30 June 2020, and back to 100% from July 2020. There 

was a catch up in the backlog of elective surgery cases 

in the months of July 2020 which resulted in an increase 

in revenue, after which elective surgery cases returned to 

normal levels. 

Important factors that need to be taken into account, is the 

Australian Government’s intervention by recognising the 

role private hospitals play in the economy of the country.  

In line with this, PMA secured a funding viability agreement 

with the Australian Commonwealth Government and New 

South Wales (NSW) Health to support the coordinated 

response to the public and private sectors during the 

COVID-19 pandemic, which assisted the viability of the 

hospitals and its staff to ensure that ongoing services were 

provided.

Proactive measures taken by the Australian Government 

with advice from leading health experts, as well as a 

largely abiding population, has assisted in controlling the 

pandemic within Australia, with limited impact on the 

supply chains and other business related issues.  In order 

to ensure minimisation of risk, PMA was pro-active in 

pre-ordering additional surgical and medical stock from 

suppliers to safeguard that there would be limited effect 

in surgical operations taking place.  Further planning has 

been put in place with regular PMA management meetings 

to strategise ways to ensure ongoing communications 

received from Australia Department of Health as to 

the preventative processes, are followed in all of its day 

hospitals.  Part of this includes continuous communication 

with PMA surgeons and strategic planning with its Medical 

Advisory and Audit Committees.

The external auditor is responsible for independently 

auditing and reporting on the Group’s consolidated annual 

financial statements. The consolidated annual financial 

statements have been examined by the Group’s external 

auditor and their report is presented on pages 34 to 37. 

The consolidated annual financial statements have been 

audited in compliance with the Companies Act.

The consolidated annual financial statements of Advanced 

and its subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2021 were 

prepared under the supervision of the Group’s Chief 

Financial Officer, SG Chonco CA(SA).

The consolidated annual financial statements, which we 

believe fairly presents the financial position and financial 

performance of the Group, are set out on pages 38 to 90. 

These have been prepared on the going concern basis, 

were approved by the board on 8 October 2021 and were 

signed on their behalf by:
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DECLARATION BY  
COMPANY SECRETARY 
In terms of section 88(2)(e)/33(1) of the Companies Act, 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief 

the company has lodged with the Commissioner of the 

Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such 

returns as are required of a public company in terms of 

the Companies Act, in respect of the financial year ended 

30 June 2021, and that all such returns are true, correct 

and up to date.

Mari-Louise Stoltz
Company Secretary
Pretoria

8 October 2021

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER AND CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER’S 
RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT 
CERTIFICATE 
In line with paragraph 3.84(k)  of the JSE Listing 

Requirements, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 

Financial Officer confirm that: 

a. the annual financial statements set out on pages 

38 to 90, fairly present in all material respects the 

financial position, financial performance and cash 

flows of the issuer in terms of IFRS;

b. no facts have been omitted or untrue statements 

made that would make the annual financial 

statements false or misleading;

c. internal financial controls have been put in place to 

ensure that material information relating to the issuer 

and its consolidated subsidiaries have been provided 

to effectively prepare the financial statements of the 

issuer; and

d. the internal financial controls are adequate and 

effective and can be relied upon in compiling the 

annual financial statements, having fulfilled our role 

and function within the combined assurance model 

pursuant to principle 15 of the King Code. Where 

we are not satisfied, we have disclosed to the audit 

committee and the auditors the deficiencies in design 

and operational effectiveness of the internal financial 

controls and any fraud that involves directors, and 

have taken the necessary remedial action.

Sinenhlanhla Chonco 

CFO 

Pretoria 

8 October 2021

Gerhard van Emmenis 

CEO 

Pretoria 

8 October 2021
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT
This report is provided by the audit and risk committee.

OBJECTIVE
The audit and risk committee (“the committee”) has 

pleasure in submitting this report, which has been prepared 

in accordance with the Companies Act and incorporates 

the recommendations of King IV. 

The committee has performed all the duties required. 

Due to the size of the company, the board decided to 

combine the committee and attend to both audit and risk 

responsibilities in one committee.

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE
The members of the audit and risk committee as at  

30 June 2021 are all independent non-executive directors 

of the Group and include:

Name Qualification

CJPG van Zyl 

(Chairman)
B.Com (Hons), CA(SA)

PJ Jaffe
B.Comm, CA(SA), HDip Tax, 

CA (Australia)

FA van Hoogstraten Dip Law (UCT)

YJ Visser BLC, LLB (UP)

All committee members are suitably skilled and have the 

required knowledge and experience.

Committee members are approved by the shareholders at 

the AGM.

The company secretary is also the secretary of this 

Committee.

MEETINGS HELD BY THE AUDIT 
AND RISK COMMITTEE
The audit and risk committee performs the duties laid 

upon it by holding meetings with the key role players on 

a regular basis and by the unrestricted access granted to 

the external auditor.

The committee held three meetings during the 2021 

financial year and all the members of the committee 

attended all the  meetings.

The external auditors attended and reported at all the 

committee meetings. The chairman of the board, CEO, 

CFO and other relevant senior managers attend meetings 

by invitation.

ROLES OF THE AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE
The committee has adopted formal terms of reference, 

approved by the board, setting out its duties and 

responsibilities as prescribed in the Companies Act and 

incorporating additional duties delegated to it by the 

board. 

The committee: 

• assists the board in overseeing the quality and integrity 

of the Group’s integrated reporting process, including 

the consolidated annual financial statements, and 

announcements in respect of the financial results;

• ensures that an effective control environment in the 

Group is maintained;

• provides the CFO and external auditor with unrestricted 

access to the committee and its chairman as is required 

in relation to any matter falling within the ambit of the 

committee;

• meets with the external auditor, senior managers and 

executive directors as the committee may elect;

• meets confidentially with the external auditor without 

other executive board members and the company’s 

CFO being present;

• reviews and recommends to the board the interim 

financial results and consolidated annual financial 

statements;

• fulfills the duties that are assigned to it by the Companies 

Act and as governed by other legislative requirements, 

including the statutory audit and risk committee 

functions required for subsidiary companies;

• oversees the financial results and the annual report;

• ensures appropriate financial reporting procedures 

exists and are working properly;

• performs statutory audit and risk committee functions 

required for subsidiary companies;

• receives and deals with any complaints concerning 

accounting practices or the content and audit of its 

annual financial statements or related matters; and

• reviews the contents of the JSE proactive monitoring 

report.

EXECUTION OF FUNCTIONS 
DURING THE YEAR
The committee is satisfied that, for the 2021 financial year, 

it has performed all the functions required to be performed 

by the committee as set out in the Companies Act and the 

committee’s terms of reference.
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The committee discharged its functions in relation to its terms 

of reference and ascribed to it in terms of the Companies Act 

during the year under review as follows:

External audit

The committee, amongst other matters: 

• nominated Mazars as the external auditor and Gerhard 

de Beer as the designated auditor to shareholders for 

appointment as auditor for the financial year ended 30 

June 2021, and ensured that the appointment complied 

with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements for 

the appointment of an auditor;

• nominated the external auditor for reappointment and the 

individual auditor, Gerhard de Beer, for appointment for 

the financial year ending 30 June 2022;

• obtained an annual confirmation from the auditor that 

their independence was not impaired;

• obtained and considered all inspections and findings done 

by professional bodies on Mazars. 

• maintained a policy setting out the categories of non-

audit services that the external auditor may and may 

not provide, split between permitted, permissible and 

prohibited services;

• approved non-audit services with Mazars in accordance 

with its policy;

• approved the external audit plan and the budgeted audit 

fees payable to the external auditor;

• considered whether any reportable irregularities were 

identified and reported by the external auditor in terms of 

the Auditing Profession Act;

• considered any reported control weaknesses and 

management’s response for their improvement, and 

assessed their impact on the general control environment; 

and

• reviewed Mazars’ submitted reports relating to quality 

assessment reviews undertaken internally and by the 

Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA). There 

are no significant matters to report to the shareholders.

The committee is satisfied that Mazars is independent of 

the Group after taking the following factors into account: 

• representations made by Mazars to the committee;

• the auditor does not, except as external auditor or in 

rendering permitted non-audit services, receive any 

remuneration or other benefit from the company;

• the auditors’ independence was not impaired by any 

consultancy, advisory or other work undertaken by the 

auditor;

• the auditors’ independence was not prejudiced as a 

result of any previous appointment as auditor;

• the criteria specified for independence by IRBA and 

international regulatory bodies; and

• Mazars has been the auditor for eight years, with a 

rotation of partners.

The committee is satisfied that the audit partner, Gerhard 

de Beer, is independent based on representations made by 

himself and Mazars.

Adequacy and functioning of the Group’s 

internal controls

The committee reviewed the plans and work outputs of the 

external auditor and concluded that these were adequate 

to address all significant financial risks facing the business.  

As noted above, it also reviewed the reporting around 

the adequacy of the internal controls and, based on this, 

concluded that there had been no material breakdowns in 

internal control, including financial controls, business risk 

management and the maintenance of effective material 

control systems. 

Financial reporting 

The committee ensures that the financial reporting to 

stakeholders fairly presents the state of affairs of the Group. 

This covers the consolidated annual financial statements, 

integrated report and interim reporting. 

The committee, amongst other matters: 

• confirmed the going concern as the basis of preparation 

of the consolidated annual financial statements;

• reviewed compliance with the financial conditions of 

loan covenants and determined that the capital of the 

company was adequate;

• examined and reviewed the consolidated annual financial 

statements, as well as all financial information disclosed 

prior to the submission to the board for its approval and 

then for disclosure to stakeholders;

• ensured that the consolidated annual financial statements 

fairly present the financial position of the Group as at the 

end of the financial year and the results of operations and 

cash flows for the financial year, and considered the basis 

on which the company and the Group were determined to 

be a going concern;

• considered the appropriateness of the accounting policies 

adopted and changes thereto;

• reviewed the external auditor’s audit report and key audit 

matters included;

• reviewed the representation letter relating to the annual 

financial statements which was signed by management;

• considered any problems identified and reviewed any 

significant legal and tax matters that could have a material 

impact on the annual financial statements; and

• considered accounting treatments, significant unusual 

transactions and accounting judgements.  
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EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF 
CFO AND THE FINANCIAL FUNCTION 
The committee has satisfied itself that the CFO, Sinenhlanhla 

Chonco, has the appropriate expertise and experience. In 

addition, the committee satisfied itself that the composition, 

experience and skills set of the finance function met the 

Group’s requirements.

ELECTION OF COMMITTEE AT  
AN AGM
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act which 

requires that a public company must elect an audit and 

risk committee at each AGM, the Advanced audit and risk 

committee was appointed at the AGM. 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Following the review by the committee of the consolidated 

annual financial statements of Advanced for the year ended 

30 June 2021, the committee is of the view that in all material 

aspects they comply with the relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act and IFRS, the Financial Pronouncements as 

issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council and the 

JSE Listings Requirements, and fairly present the consolidated 

financial position at that date and the results of operations 

and cash flows for the year then ended.  

Recommendation of the consolidated annual 

financial statements for approval by the board

Having achieved its objectives, the committee has 

recommended the consolidated annual financial statements 

for the year ended 30 June 2021 for approval to the board. 

The board has subsequently approved the consolidated 

annual financial statements, which will be open for discussion 

at the forthcoming AGM.

Risk management

The Group’s risk management function has been assigned 

to the committee. The board considers risk management to 

be a key process in the pursuit of strategic objectives and in 

the effective management of issues across the Group. Risk 

identification and mitigation activities form an integral part of 

the day-to-day running of the business and is in accordance 

with the Group’s philosophy.

The board is responsible for the governance of risk across the 

Group, for setting the risk appetite and for monitoring the 

effectiveness of Advanced’s risk management processes. This 

responsibility is delegated to the committee and reviewed 

by the board on an annual basis or more frequently where 

required. The boards of the main subsidiaries in Australia 

and South Africa are responsible for the oversight of the risk 

management processes to be implemented and to evaluate 

the effectiveness of these processes.

Evaluation of material risks and the effectiveness of the risk 

management processes were reviewed by the executive 

committees. Following a comprehensive review of the risks 

and mitigating controls at the committee meeting, the 

committee formulated an overall conclusion and submitted a 

formal risk review report to the board. The committee’s report 

included an opinion on the overall status of material risks with 

reference to the adequacy of related mitigating controls.

The Group’s integrated risk management model considers 

clinical, strategic, operational, financial and compliance risks. 

Reputational risks and uncertain risks, which are inherent 

to the Advanced business, are also identified, monitored, 

recorded and appropriately managed.

At year end, the Advanced board was satisfied with the 

status and effectiveness of risk governance in the Group and 

adequacy of mitigation plans for material risks.

On behalf of the audit and risk committee

Cor van Zyl
Chairman Audit and Risk Committee
8 October 2021
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Loan converted to shares in Presmed 

During the year ended the 30 June 2021 a portion of the 

loans held in PMA were converted into PMA ordinary shares. 

A total loan amount of AUD674 970 was converted to 24 607 

PMA ordinary shares, issued at a share price of AUD27.43 per 

PMA share. The conversion diluted Advanced Health’s current 

shareholding in PMA from 61.41% to 59.66%, a deemed 

disposal of 1.75% (“Deemed Disposal”).  The share of profits 

by minorities was therefore increased by  1.75%.

Associate Acquisition

During the year PMA increased their shareholding in Metwest 

by 19% resulting in a total holding of 38%. The investment 

in Metwest of 19% was previously carried at fair value. After 

acquiring the additional shares the group has significant 

influence over Metwest as defined in IAS28 and accordingly 

the investment is accounted for as an investment in an 

associate using the equity method. Included in the group 

statement of profit or loss for the year is a share of profit from 

equity accounted investments of R5.1 million.   

Change in terms of leases

The group reviewed its lease contracts in March 2021. The 

majority of the group’s facilities have a fixed 10 year lease 

period with a further 10 year extension option. The 10 

year extension option was taken into account in the initial 

calculation of lease liabilities and right of use assets when 

IFRS16 became effective as it was reasonably certain that the 

entity would exercise this option at the end of the lease.

The directors no longer consider it reasonably certain that the 

entity will exercise some of the extension options on certain 

entities and accordingly the lease terms were amended. The 

change of the lease term resulted in a decrease of R92.8million 

of both right of use assets and lease liabilities.  

Nature of business

Advanced is a holding company incorporated in South Africa. 

The Group provides short- procedure surgical facilities and 

services in day hospitals in both South Africa and Australia.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the 

Group’s business from the prior year.

Review of financial results and activities

The consolidated annual financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with IFRS, Financial Pronouncements 

as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, 

the JSE Listing Requirements and the Companies Act. The 

accounting policies have been applied consistently compared 

to the prior year.

The group has performed substantially better than the 

previous comparative period. The outstanding group 

results are attributable to the  sterling performance by the 

Australia subsidiary where profit was more than 100% ahead 

of prior year. Further contributing to the outstanding group 

performance in the 2021 financial year was a reduction of 

losses that were incurred by the South African subsidiary 

due to a number of interventions that were implemented by 

management including the disposal of Vergelegen and the 

closing of the Soweto facility which has been making major 

losses. The reduction of losses within the South African 

operations was also influenced by the restructuring processes 

that took place during the financial year where payroll costs 

was reduced through the retrenchment process.  

The group revenue increased to R680.7 million (2020: R476.2 

million) driven by an increase in the number of cases in South 

Africa and in Australia, also influencing an increase in revenue 

was a change in case mix where surgeries that  attracts higher 

revenue were performed in the current year. 

Profit before tax of R24.4 million  (2020:  Loss of R94.1 million) 

was more than 100% higher than prior year.  Profit before 

tax was mainly due to higher profits that were generated by 

Australia segment. The net profit before tax from Australia 

was more than 100% ahead of prior year, this was as a result 

of higher revenue generated in the current year, improved 

margins realised together with very well controlled cost 

structures that were put in place by management. 

South African business segment also experienced a decline 

in losses when compared to prior year. The group gross 

profit percentage (‘GP%’) realized was higher by 3% when 

compared to prior year, the rest of the cost structure remained 

predominantly fixed. 

The overall group results are extremely encouraging in what 

has been a challenging year. The full details of the financial 

position, results of operations and cash flows of the Group 

are set out in these consolidated annual financial statements 

(in page 38-90).

Stated capital

The issued stated capital of Advanced is 498 784 580 shares 

(2020: 287,988,433 shares).  On 15 March 2021 the company 

invited its shareholders to subscribe to a rights issue of 279 

416 667 ordinary shares at an issue price of 24 cents per share 

on the basis of 97.02357 shares for every 100 ordinary shares 

held. 210 796 147 ordinary shares were issued to the value of 

R50.6million, with issue costs of R1.2million incurred.

Control over unissued shares

The unissued ordinary shares are the subject of a general 

authority granted to the directors in terms of the Companies 

Act. This general authority remains valid only until the next 

AGM. The shareholders will be asked at that meeting to 

consider an ordinary resolution placing the said unissued 

ordinary shares under the control of the directors until the 

next AGM.
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Share options

The group entered into a share-based payment transaction 

with certain directors for a rolling period of three years. Refer 

to note 19 for details of the Group share incentive scheme. 

Dividends

There were no dividends paid or declared during the current 

or previous financial year at Group level. An amount of R10.7 

million (2020:R10.2 million) was declared to the minority 

shareholders during the year within the Presmed group.

Directors’ shareholding

As at 30 June 2021, the directors of the company held direct 

and indirect beneficial interests as set out in note 35 of the 

consolidated annual financial statements.

Directorate

The directors in office at 30 June 2021 were as follows:

Directors Designation
CA Grillenberger Chairman

GJ van Emmenis CEO

SG Chonco CFO

MC Resnik* MD of Presmed

CJPG van Zyl Independent non-executive

FA van Hoogstraten
Lead independent non-

executive

PJ Jaffe* Independent non-executive

Dr WT Mthembu Independent non-executive

Dr J Oelofse Independent non-executive

YJ Visser Independent non-executive

Dr KE Legodi Independent non-executive

D Goss-Ross (alternate) COO of AHSA

* Australian

The directors in office at the date of signing this report are 

consistent with that above. 

Directors’ interests

During the financial year, all contracts entered into with 

directors and officers of the group were at arm’s length. 

Directors’ interests are set out in notes 19, 32 and 35 of the 

consolidated annual financial statements.

Secretary

The name and address of the company secretary is set out in 

the administration section of this integrated report.

Subsidiaries

Information relating to the company’s financial interest in its 

subsidiaries is set out in note 33 of the consolidated annual 

financial statements.

Borrowing powers

In terms of the MOI of the company, the directors may 

exercise all the powers of the group to borrow funds, as they 

consider appropriate.

Auditors

Mazars continued in office as auditors for the Group for the 

financial year ending 30 June 2021.

At the AGM, the shareholders will be requested to reappoint 

Mazars as the independent external auditor of the company 

and to confirm Gerhard de Beer as the designated lead audit 

partner for the 2022 financial year.

Going concern

Advanced Health draws attention that at 30 June 2021, the 

Group had accumulated losses of R255.3 million (2020: 

R237.2 million) after a profit of R0.6million (2020: loss of 

R133.8 million). The group’s current ratio is 1:1 (2020: 0.8:1). 

The South African Operations within the group however 

continued to incur significant losses (R47.7 million) and had 

negative cashflows from operations taking into account 

lease payments. The current liabilities of the South African 

Operations exceed current assets by R3.55 million.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 

on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going 

concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available 

to finance future operations and the realisation of assets 

and settlement of liabilities, contingent liabilities and 

commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

      

The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is 

dependent on the continuous improvement of operations, 

generation of positive cash flows and the ability of 

management to manage COVID-19 effects.   

    

Managements’ plan to improve results include: 

1. Disposal of minority shareholding in facilities to 

doctor’s consortiums to develop long term strategic 

partnerships with specialists.

2. Ensuring reasonable tariff increases from Medical 

Schemes during annual tariff increase negotiations.

3. Marketing campaigns to align specialists, patients, 

medical schemes and facilities

4. Focussed recruitment campaigns for key specialists 

at strategic facilities, including those who used our 

facilities during COVID lockdowns.

5. Capital expenditure on gynaecologist and orthopaedic 

equipment at selected facilities.

Strategy

Management’s strategy is to ensure optimisation of 

theatres through the following action plans:

• Collaboration with various medical schemes to channel 

day procedures to day hospitals.

• There will continue to be a core focus on marketing. This 

will entail refining the marketing strategy to increase 

theatre optimisation, improve surgery diversity and 

increase overall patient satisfaction.
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• Expansion of well-utilised facilities to maximise on 

excess capacity to accommodate forecasted growth in 

patient numbers.

• Alternative measures are being evaluated for 

underperforming facilities.

• Effective utilisation of equipment and continuous 

enhancing of information technology.

• There will be a greater focus on stock management to 

reduce stock holding and increase efficiencies.

• Day hospitals are still recognised as cost-effective 

service providers and are well placed to benefit from 

public-private partnership opportunities.

IMPACT OF COVID-19
COVID-19 resulted in a change to composition of cases in 

a more favorable direction within both the South African 

operations and Australian operations. This is because some 

of the short-stay cases that were traditionally performed 

at acute facilities have been moved to day facilities and 

because of elective surgery being on hold for a longer 

period in the acute facility to accommodate COVID-19 

patients in available beds. Revenue per case is indicative 

of this, which has increased by 24% year on year, whereas 

case numbers have increased by 15%. A further indicator of 

a change of case mix is that theatre minutes per case has 

increased from 38 to 48 minutes in South Africa.

Negatively impacted by COVID-19 were disciplines like 

ENT and Ophthalmology. The contribution to total revenue 

and cases for ENT Surgery has not completely returned 

to the same levels as pre-COVID-19, but contribution 

to total revenue has recovered to 5% (Previously 6%). 

Ophthalmology has not returned to the same level of 

contribution to neither total cases nor total revenue as pre-

COVID-19. In the first nine months of the previous financial 

year, Ophthalmology contributed 18% to total revenue 

and 14% of total cases. For the 12 months which ended 30 

June 2021, it contributed 11% to total cases and 13% to total 

revenue.

Events subsequent to reporting period

Revenue that was reported for the 1st month of the 2022 

financial year was lower than budget. The 3rd wave of 

COVID-19 had an impact on revenue in both South Africa 

and in Australia. Management’s  focus has been keeping up 

to date with daily government and medical expert advice, 

while simultaneously working with doctors and all other 

stakeholders, as well as ensuring that our facilities remained 

as safe as possible all the time. 

COVID-19 has resulted in a reduction in patient numbers in 

July 2021 due to patient cancellations. Management expect 

the same trends as last year where the cancelled cases will 

cause a  backlog in surgeries in the upcoming months. 

On the 7th July 2021, Presmed Australia acquired a 20% 

interest in the Devonport Eye Hospital Pty Ltd and Clearvis 

Pty Ltd for a total consideration combined transaction 

consideration of AUD 1 408 116. 

An additional transaction consideration amount will be 

calculated based on the adjusted EBITDA of Devonport Eye 

Hospital Pty Ltd and Clearvis Pty Ltd, for the year ending 30 

June 2021. The additional transaction consideration amount is 

not expected to exceed the initial payment amount.

Approval of the consolidated annual financial 

statements

The consolidated annual financial statements set out on pages 

38 to 90 which have been prepared on the going concern 

basis, were approved by the board on 8 October 2021.

Gerhard van Emmenis
CEO
8 October 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Advanced Health Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 

Advanced Health Limited and its subsidiaries (the group) 

set out on pages 38 to 90, which comprise the consolidated 

statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and 

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash 

flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 

financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present 

fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 

position of Advanced Health Limited and its subsidiaries as 

at 30 June 2021, and its consolidated financial performance 

and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory 

Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for 

Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence 

requirements applicable to performing audits of financial 

statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in 

accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 

performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent 

with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics 

Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of 

Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 

Independence Standards). We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to the consolidated statement of financial 

position as well as note 37 of the consolidated financial 

statements, which indicates that at 30 June 2021 the Group 

had accumulated losses of R255.3 (2020: R237.2) million and, 

as at that date, the South African Operations’ current liabilities 

exceeded its current assets by R3.55 million. As stated in 

note 37, these events and conditions indicate that a material 

uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the 

group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is 

not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the 

Materiality Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we 

have determined the matters described below to be the key 

audit matters to be communicated in our report.    
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MATTER AUDIT RESPONSE

Valuation of Goodwill (Note 6)

Goodwill (note 6) comprises 2.26% (R20.983 million) of group 

assets as recognised in the consolidated statement of financial 

position.

As required by the applicable accounting standards and 

accounting policy 1.4, management conducted an annual 

impairment test to assess the recoverability of the carrying value 

of the goodwill. 

This is assessed by performing a discounted cash flow calculation 

to determine the recoverable amount of each cash generating 

unit and comparing it to the carrying value of the asset.

There are a number of key areas of judgement and estimation 

made in reviewing the valuation which include discount rates and 

estimated future cash flows, amongst others.

The valuation of goodwill and its related impairment tests is 

therefor considered to be a key audit matter due to the extent of 

judgement and the estimation involved.

Our procedures related to the recoverability of the carrying value 

of goodwill  included, amongst others:

• assessing the competence, capability, objectivity and 

integrity of our audit expert.

• testing the integrity of the models with the assistance of  our 

auditor’s expert. 

• assessing the reasonableness of the cash flow projections 

for the cash generating units as used in management’s 

assessment;

• reviewing the reasonableness of the discount rate used with 

the assistance of our audit expert;

• recalculating the discounted cash flow amount; 

• performing a sensitivity analysis on the discounted cash 

flows; and

• assessing the appropriateness of the related disclosures 

provided in the Consolidated Financial Statements. In 

particular we considered the completeness of the disclosures 

regarding those cash generating units with material goodwill 

balances and where a reasonable possible change in certain 

variables could lead to goodwill being impaired. 

Deferred tax (Note 9)

In terms of the accounting standards and accounting policy 1.10, 

a deferred tax asset can only be recognised if it is probable that 

future taxable profits will be realised against which the asset can 

be utilised.

The recognition of the deferred tax asset is considered to be a 

key audit matter due to the uncertainty with regards to the future 

taxable profits for the loss making facilities as a result of the losses 

made by the South African facilities in the past year. Total deferred 

tax assets amounted to R45.35 Million at 30 June 2021.

Our procedures included obtaining management’s forecasts of 

taxable profits for each entity that has a deferred tax asset at year 

end and:

• evaluating the accuracy of the modelling process by 

comparing past estimates to actual results;

• performing a sensitivity analysis on the forecasts of taxable 

profits;

• testing the mathematical accuracy of the taxable profit 

forecasts; and

• assessing the reasonableness and challenging the 

appropriateness of the most important assumptions applied 

based on our audit evidence gathered and debating these 

assumptions with those charged with governance.
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Other Information  

The directors are responsible for the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the 

document titled “Advanced Health Limited Annual Report 

2021”, which includes the Directors’ Report, the Audit and Risk 

Committee’s Report and the Company Secretary’s Certificate 

as required by the Companies Act of South Africa. The other 

information does not include the consolidated financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does 

not cover the other information and we do not express an 

audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 

is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 

work we have performed on the other information obtained 

prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that 

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the 

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, 

and for such internal control as the directors determine is 

necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 

directors are responsible for assessing the group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the 

group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 

but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 

of the consolidated financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 

is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 

to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the group’s internal control. 
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Mazars 
Partner: Gerhard de Beer
Registered Auditor
8 October 2021 

Pretoria

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by the directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 

a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 

the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the group to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the 

consolidated financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 

regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the group to express an 

opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the group audit. We remain solely 

responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the directors with a statement that we 

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 

on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to 

eliminate threats or  safeguards applied. 

From the matters communicated with the directors, we 

determine those matters that were of most significance 

in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 

describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 

when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette 

Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that 

Mazars has been the auditor of Advanced Health Limited for 

8 years. 
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GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2021

2021
Restated

2020*

Notes R’000 R’000

Assets
Non-current assets 711,829 764,764
Property, plant and equipment 4 566,676 628,708
Investment in associate 5 35,248 -
Goodwill 6 20,983 28,958
Intangible assets 7 16,817 19,829
Other financial assets 8 26,756 41,937
Deferred taxation 9 45,349 45,332

Current assets 195,565 110,781
Inventories 10 19,105 15,153

Trade and other receivables 11 69,219 34,781

Current tax receivable 23 1,070

Cash and cash equivalents 12 107,218 59,777

Assets of disposal groups 13 18,874 202,705

Total assets 926,268 1,078,250

Equity and liabilities
Stated capital 18 271,377 221,956

Accumulated loss (255,270) (237,150)

Foreign currency translation reserve 37,090 52,640

Share-based payment reserve 19 1,283 1,283

Equity attributable to equity holders of parent 54,480 38,729

Non-controlling interest 34 125,262 115,629

Total equity 179,742 154,358

Non-current liabilities 562,088 588,921
Borrowings 15 147,575 150,792

Lease liabilities 16 413,413 437,125

Provisions 17 1,100 1,004

Current liabilities 163,051 138,204
Trade and other payables 14 59,218 62,070

Borrowings 15 45,005 30,837

Lease liabilities 16 18,451 30,549

Provisions 17 12,794 9,975

Current tax payable 29 16,167 1,651

Bank overdraft 12 11,417 3,126

Liabilities of disposal groups 13 21,387 196,763

Total liabilities 746,527 923,892
Total equity and liabilities 926,268 1,078,250

* Property, plant and equipment and Right of use assets were previously shown separately in the annual report, but have been grouped together 
in the current year. (Note 38)

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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GROUP STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the year ended at 30 June 2021

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

2021 2020

Notes R’000 R’000

Revenue 20 680,675 476,220

Cost of sales (348,408) (261,629)
Gross profit 332,267 214,591
Other income 21 19,250 20,786
Expected credit losses 11 (446) (3,968)
Impairment loss 22 (9,889) (4,743)
Share of the profit from equity accounted investments 5 5,114 -
Other operating expenses 23 (255,288) (248,412)
Operating loss before interest 91,008 (21,746)
Investment income 24 886 1,800
Finance costs 25 (67,543) (74,162)

Profit/(loss) before taxation 24,351 (94,108)
Taxation 26 (23,775) (39,733)

Profit/(loss) for the year 576 (133,841)
Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: 

Foreign currency translation differences (21,950) 31,240

Total comprehensive loss for the year (21,374) (102,601)

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent (17,754) (147,107)

Non-controlling interest 18,330 13,266

576 (133,841)

Total comprehensive income/( loss):
Owners of the parent (33,304) (126,575)

Non-controlling interest 11,930 23,974

(21,374) (102,601)

Basic and diluted loss per share (c) 27 (5,21) (51,08)
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Balance at 1 July 2019 310,423 (88,467) 221,956 1,283 32,108 (109,529) 145,818 64,142 209,960
(Loss)/profit for the year - - - - - (147,107) (147,107) 13,266 (133,841)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - 20,532 - 20,532 10,708 31,240
Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year - - - -

         

20,532 (147,107) (126,575) 23,974 (102,601)
Change in interest of subsidiary - - - - - (612) (612) 612 -
Change in ownership interest* - - - - - 20,098 20,098 36,841 56,939
Dividends declared*** - - - - - - - (10,187) (10,187)
Issue of shares - - - - - - - 247 247

Balance at 30 June 2020 310,423 (88,467) 221,956 1,283 52,640 (237,150) 38,729 115,629 154,358
(Loss)/profit for the year - - - - - (17,754) (17,754) 18,330 576

Other comprehensive loss - - - - (15,550) - (15,550) (6,400) (21,950)
Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year - - - - - - (33,304) 11,930 (21,374)

Change in ownership interest^ - - - - - (366) (366) 8,356 7,990

Issue of shares** 49,421 - 49,421 - - - 49,421 - 49,421

Dividends declared*** - - - - - - - (10,654) (10,654)

Balance at 30 June 2021 359,844 (88,467) 271,377 1,283 37,090 (255,270) 54,480 125,261 179,742
Notes 18 18 18 19 34

* This relates to the sale of 25.1% of the Presmed shares.
** Rights issue of 279 416 667 ordinary shares at an issue price of 24 cents per share on the basis of 97.02357 shares for every 100 ordinary shares 

held. 210 796 147 ordinary shares were issued to the value of R50.6million, with issue costs of R1.2million incurred. 
***  Dividends were declared by Presmed Australia, a subsidiary of Advanced.
^ Loans converted to Presmed ordinary shares during the year.
% Equity reserve arose as a result of accounting for the reverse acquisition on terms of IFRS 3 Business Combinations.

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended at 30 June 2021

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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2021
Restated

2020*

Notes R’000 R’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 111,752 77,562
Investment income 24 886 1,800
Taxation paid 29 (7,834) (10,731)
Net cash outflow from operating activities 94,012 58,664

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 4 (12,332) (18,203)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 85 2,682

Acquisition of intangible assets 7 - (509)

Disposal of a subsidiary^ 16,475 -

Acquisition of an investment in associate 5 (15,725) -

Financial assets advanced 8 (5,122) (3,402)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (16,619) (19,432)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares in holding company 18 49,421 -

Issue of shares in subsidiary 13 - 247

Proceeds from borrowings 15 20,000 34,640

Repayment of borrowings 15 (29,519) (46,561)

Finance costs on borrowings 15 (7,537) (9,967)

Sale of 25.1% shareholding in Presmed Australia** - 56,939

Dividends paid – non-controlling interest 34 (10,654) (10,187)

Finance costs on lease liability 16 (49,214) (41,502)

Payment on lease liabilities 16 (16,013) (17,503)

Net cash inflow from financing activities (43,516) (33,894)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 44,669 15,305

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 56,651 33,967

Cash and cash equivalents of disposal Group 1,686 (1,690)

Effect of foreign currency translation (7,205) 9,069

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 14 95,801 56,651

* Finance cost have been reclassified from operating activities to financing activities to correctly reflect the nature thereof. (Note 38)
** This relates to the sale of 25.1% of the Presmed shares.
^ Advanced Vergelegen Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited was sold for a total consideration of R16.5 million during the year under review.

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended at 30 June 2021

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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BASIS OF PREPARATION,  
CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND 
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the 

preparation of these consolidated annual financial 

statements are set out below. 

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated annual financial statements for the year  

ended 30 June 2021 have been prepared in accordance     

with  the requirements of the Companies Act No 71 of 

2008  applicable to financial statements, IFRS, the Financial 

Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting 

Standards Council, Companies Act and the JSE Listings 

requirements. The accounting policies applied in the 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements were 

derived in terms of IFRS and are consistent with those 

accounting policies applied in the preparation of the previous 

consolidated annual fiinancial statements except if otherwise 

stated.

Basis for measurement

The consolidated annual financial statements have been 

prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise 

stated in the accounting policies which follow.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated annual financial statements are 

presented in South African rands (“R”), which is the 

company’s functional currency, rounded to the nearest  

thousand.

Exchange rates used for conversion of Australian figures 

to Rand were:

CLOSING AVERAGE

2021 2020 2021 2020

Australian 

dollar (AUD)
10,7778 11,9615 11,4873 10,4887

Operations

Advanced operates in two geographical regions, namely 

South Africa and Australia, which are identified as the two 

geographical operating segments.

1.2 CONSOLIDATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated annual financial statements reflect the 

financial results of the Group. All financial results are 

consolidated with similar items on a line-by-line basis.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains 

and losses between entities are eliminated on consolidation. 

To the extent that a loss on a transaction  provides evidence 

of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets 

or an impairment loss of a non- current asset, that loss is 

charged to the statement of comprehensive Income.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The 

Group controls an entity when it has majority shareholding 

or voting rights which represents power over subsidiaries 

when the Group has exposure to variable returns and the 

ability to use the power to influence the variable returns. 

The financial results of subsidiaries are consolidated 

into the Group’s results from acquisition date or date of 

incorporation until the date of loss of control.

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest is measured at their proportionate 

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 

acquisition date. Changes in the Group’s interest in a 

subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 

accounted for as equity transactions.

1.3 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND 

ESTIMATES APPLIED

Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical  

judgements the directors have made in applying 

accounting policies are as listed below. These areas have 

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 

the annual financial statements, which are described in 

detail in their respective policies and notes which follow.

NOTES TO THE GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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Goodwill impairment 
assessment 
(Judgement)

Goodwill is tested for impairment per legal entity and monitored by 

management based on future performance, future cash flows used in 

the impairment assessment are based on management's best estimates. 

Judgement is involved in determining the Weighted Average Cost of 

Capital (WACC rate) that is used to discount future cash flows in the 

impairment calculation.

Note 6

Property, plant and 
equipment
and Intangible assets 
amortisation period 
(Estimate)

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation 

and amortisation charges for its property, plant and equipment and 

finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as 

a result of technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation 

and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less 

than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic. 

Assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written 

down.

Note 4 & 7

Deferred tax 
(Judgement)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences 

only to the extent that the Group considers it is probable that future 

taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences 

and losses. This assessment is performed for each legal entity. Forecasts 

of future taxable earnings are based on management's best estimates.

Note 9

Provision for 
expected credit 
losses for financial 
assets (Estimate and 
Judgement)

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree 

of estimation and judgement. lt is based on the lifetime expected credit 

loss, categorised based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to 

allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each category. These 

assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection 

rates. Judgement is also exercised in determining whether there has 

been a significant increase in credit  risk on loan receivables since 

origination.

Note 11

Leases (Judgement)

The lease terms are estimated based on contracts and the incremental 

borrowing rate estimated based on the rate current charged by the 

external financing providers. The discount rate used by the South 

African operations was 12.25% while Presmed Australia operations 

used discount rates ranging between 4.28% to 5.0%. Consideration of 

whether extension options should be included in determining the lease 

term is a critical judgement. In determining the lease term, the Group 

considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive 

to exercise an extension option.

Note 16

Disposal Groups 
(Judgement)

In the prior year the directors of the Group decided to dispose of four 

of its subsidiaries. An assessment to determine whether these met 

the criteria of a disposal Group or discontinued operations was done 

based on the guidance provided by IFRS 5. Two of the four entities, 

which is Advanced Harbour Bay Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited 

and Advanced East Rand Day hospital were reclassified into normal 

operations in the current year.

Note 13

1.4 GOODWILL

Initial and subsequent recognition

Goodwill, which arises from business combinations, is initially recognised at cost and subsequently at cost less any 

accumulated impairment.

Impairment

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at reporting date, or more frequently when there are indications that impairment 

may have occurred, by comparing the carrying amount to its recoverable amount. Any impairment losses are included in 

other operating expenses. Impairment losses are not reversed subsequently. For impairment testing, goodwill is allocated 

to the Group’s legal subsidiaries, which are each considered a cash-generating unit (“CGU”), and represent the lowest level 

within the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
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The recoverable amount of each CGU’s goodwill is based on value-in-use calculations, which are based upon discounting 

expected pre-tax cash flows at a risk-adjusted interest rate appropriate to the CGU, the determination of both of which 

requires the exercise of judgement. The estimation of pre-tax cash flows is sensitive to the periods for  which forecasts 

are available and to assumptions regarding the long-term sustainable cash flows. While forecasts are compared to actual 

performance and external economic data, expected cash flows naturally reflect management’s view of future performance. 

Refer to note 6.

Derecognition

On disposal of the relevant subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or 

loss on disposal.

1.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Categories Useful lives
Initial 
measurement

Subsequent 
measurement

Depreciation
method Derecognition

Medical 

equipment
5 - 15 years

At cost. Cost 

includes 

expenditure 

that is directly 

attributable to 

the acquisition 

of the asset.

Cost less 

accumulated 

depreciation 

and any 

accumulated 

impairment 

losses.

On a straight-

line basis over 

the estimated 

useful lives 

of each 

component of 

an item. If it is 

a leased asset, 

it is over the 

shorter of the 

lease term and 

the useful life 

of the asset.

Property, plant, 

and equipment is 

derecognised when 

there are no future 

economic benefits 

associated with the 

asset or the asset is 

disposed.

The gain or loss 

arising from the 

derecognition of 

an item is included 

in profit or loss at 

date of disposal 

and is determined 

as the difference 

between the net 

disposal proceeds, 

if any, and the 

carrying amount of 

the item.

Furniture and 

fittings
8 - 13 years

Motor vehicles 5 - 8 years

Office 

equipment
6 - 9 years

Plant and 

machinery
10 - 15 years

Computer 

equipment
3 - 6 years

Leasehold 

improvements

Over the lease 

term

Right-of-use-

asset

Over the lease 

term

Assessments of useful lives are performed annually after considering factors such as relevant market information, the  

condition of the asset and management’s consideration of future usage. This includes benchmarking against industry  norms. 

If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting 

estimate.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. 

When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the  estimated 

recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with 

the recoverable amount. There were no impairments during the year.
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1.6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Categories
Amortisation 
period Initial measurement

Subsequent 
measurement

Amortisation 
method

Customer 

relations 
10 years

At cost. Cost includes 

expenditure that is 

directly attributable to 

the acquisition of the 

asset.

Cost less any 

accumulated 

amortisation and any 

impairment losses.

Straight-line basis over 

the finite useful life of 

the asset to zero.

Licensing rights 

(other intangible 

assets)

10 years

Computer 

Software
3 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised  at 

their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

The asset is tested for impairment when there is an indication of impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised 

over its useful life. When such indicators exist, management determines the recoverable amount by performing value in use 

calculations which require the use of estimates and assumptions.

1.7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification and measurement

The classification of financial assets is driven by the Group’s business model for managing financial assets and their  

contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial assets and liabilities, in respect of financial instruments, are recognised  on 

the Group’s statement of financial position when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

Classification

Instruments 
included in the 
classification Initial measurement

Subsequent 
measurement Derecognition

Financial 

assets at 

amortised 

cost.

Trade receivables, 

loans and receivables, 

deposits and cash and 

cash equivalents.

At fair value plus any 

directly attributable 

transaction costs.

Amortised cost 

using the effective 

interest rate 

method.

When the contractual 

rights to the cash 

flows from the 

financial assets 

expire.  Any gains or 

losses arising on the 

derecognition are 

included in profit or 

loss in other operating 

income/expense.

At fair value 

through profit 

and loss.

Investment in equity 

(refer to note 9).

At fair value, 

transaction costs 

are expensed 

immediately.

At fair value.

When the  

investment has been 

disposed of.
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Expected credit losses

The Group has financial assets classified and measured  at 

amortised cost that are subject to the expected credit loss 

model requirements of IFRS 9. While cash  at bank and in 

hand are classified and measured at amortised cost, they 

are also subject to the impairment  requirements but are 

considered to have low risk and the expected credit loss 

mitigated through the Group’s credit risk management 

policy. (Refer to Risk Management, note 30).

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the amount of the expected  

credit loss is the irrecoverable amount estimated by 

management based on assumptions about risk of default 

and expected loss rates. The Group applies the IFRS 9 

simplified approach, due to trade receivables not having 

a significant financing component, to measure expected 

credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance 

for trade receivables. In determining the expected credit 

losses, the receivables  are grouped together based on 

similar credit risk characteristics, thereby applying the 

practical expedient available by using a provision matrix. 

Trade receivables consists mainly of medical aid schemes. 

Expected credit losses are calculated by applying a historic 

loss ratio  to the revenue received in different aging groups. 

The historic loss rates are adjusted to reflect current 

and forward-looking information on macroeconomic 

factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the 

receivables. An analysis is performed to assess past default 

experiences, and this is incorporated into the calculation 

of the historic loss rates. The group considers the 

macroeconomic factors such as inflation, unemployment, 

interest rates, and economic growth in the environment in 

which it operates. Refer to note 9 for more details on loss 

allowance. The carrying amount is reduced through the 

use of an allowance account.

Loans and receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for loans and 

receivables at an amount equal to 12 months’ expected   

credit losses where the credit risk on the financial assets  

has not increased significantly since initial recognition. The 

Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses where 

there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 

initial recognition. Determining an increase in   significant 

risk requires significant judgement which results in 

estimation uncertainty when assessing expected credit 

losses. The carrying amount is reduced directly by the 

expected credit loss. Refer to note 11.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a receivable or 

group of receivables has increased significantly since the 

initial recognition, the group:

• Compares the risk of default occurring as at the 

reporting date with the risk of a default occurring as 

the date of initial recognition.

• Reviews amounts that are overdue.

• Performs an assessment of relevant historical 

and forward-looking quantitative and qualitative 

information. Forward-looking information considered 

includes the future prospects of the industry in which 

the Group operates as well as various external sources 

of actual and forecast economic information.

Because of the nature of the business model and type 

of customers that the group has, there is no deemed 

significant increase in credit risk as the group recovers the 

amounts as they are due. 

The Group considers an event of default has occurred and 

the financial asset is credit impaired when information 

developed internally or obtained from external sources 

indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay the Group such 

as delinquency in payments, the probability of insolvency 

or significant financial difficulties of the debtor. A financial 

asset is written off  when there is no reasonable expectation 

of recovering contractual cash flows.

Bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 

effective interest rate method. For the purpose of the cash 

flow statements, total cash at end of the year includes 

bank overdraft.
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Financial liabilities

Classification

Instruments 
included in the 
classification Initial measurement

Subsequent 
measurement Derecognition

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised 

cost.

Trade and other 

payables and other 

financial liabilities.

At fair value plus any 

directly attributable 

transaction costs.

Amortised cost 

using the effective 

interest rate 

method.

When the obligations

specified in the

contract expire or

are discharged or

cancelled.  Any gains 

or losses arising on 

the derecognition are 

included in profit or 

loss in other operating 

income/expense.

1.8 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence, and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint 

arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee 

but is not control or joint control over those policies. It generally accompanies a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of 

the voting rights.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, investments in associates 

are carried in the statement of financial position at cost adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the group’s share of net 

assets of the associate, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of movements in other 

comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying 

amount of the investment. Losses in an associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate, including any other 

unsecured receivables, are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred a legal or constructive obligation to 

make payments on behalf of the associate.

Any goodwill on acquisition of an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment, however, a gain on 

acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Profits or losses on transactions between the Group and an associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest 

therein.

1.9 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS ACCOUNTING POLICY

The group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the group also:

• tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment annually 

by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. The impairment test is performed during the annual 

period and at the same time every period. 

• tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is 

not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 

to which the asset belongs is determined.
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The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating 

unit is the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and its 

value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than the 

carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is an 

impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any 

accumulated depreciation or amortization is recognized 

immediately in profit or loss. 

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the 

acquisition date, allocated to each of the cash-generating 

units or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected 

to benefit from the synergies of the combination, 

irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 

acquiree are assigned to those units or groups of units.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating 

units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than 

the carrying amount of the units. The impairment loss is 

allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of 

the unit in the following order:

• first reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated 

to the cash-generating unit and

• then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the 

basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any entity assesses at each reporting date whether there 

is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in 

prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer 

exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, 

the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than 

goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss 

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 

for the assets in the prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost 

less accumulated depreciation or amortization other than 

goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

1.10 TAX

Current tax assets and liabilities 

Current tax is recognised when there is an expected charge 

or deduction for tax purposes. Current tax for current 

and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as 

a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of current 

and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those 

periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior 

periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid  

to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates 

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the 

carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement 

of financial position differs from its tax base, except for 

differences arising on: 

• The initial recognition of goodwill 

• The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 

transaction which is not a business combination and at 

the time of the transaction affects neither accounting 

or taxable profit, and 

• Investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements 

where the group is able to control the timing of the 

reversal of the difference and it is probable that the 

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward 

of unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that      

future taxable profit will be available against which the 

unused tax losses can be utilised. This requires estimation 

in  determining the probability of future taxable income 

thereby justifying the recognition of the asset included in 

the statement of financial position (refer to note 8).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 

rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively  

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Tax expense

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or 

an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, 

except to the extent that the tax arises from:

• a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same 

or a different period, to other comprehensive income, 

or 

• a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited 

to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items 

that are credited or charged, in the same or a different 

period, to other comprehensive income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited 

directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited 

or charged, in the same or a different period, directly in 

equity. 
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1.11 LEASES

Nature of Group Leases

The Group leases hospital buildings. Rental contracts are 

usually for an initial fixed period of 10 to 20 years with an 

extension option. The Group does not apply the practical 

expedient per paragraph 15 in IFRS 16 and non-lease 

components are accounted for using other applicable 

standards. The extension period has been taken into 

account when determining the term of the lease where the 

Group is reasonably certain  it will exercise the option to 

extend. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis.

Factors considered when determining whether an 

extension will be exercised include:

• The demand for our service in the area.

• The importance of the leased asset to the Group’s 

operations.

• The specialised nature of leased assets - buildings are 

outfitted specifically for use as hospitals and cannot be 

readily used for alternate operations.

• Significant leasehold improvements undertaken or 

expected to be undertaken during the term of the lease.

• The Group considers other factors such as costs 

associated with terminating the lease.

Leases as Lessee

Lease Liability

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially 

measured on a present value basis. Property rates and 

taxes are considered to be variable lease payments that do 

not depend on an index or rate, therefore these payments 

have not been included in the measurement of the lease 

liability. The lease payments are discounted using the 

incremental borrowing rate that the Group would have 

paid to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of 

similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 

environment with similar terms, security and conditions. 

In determining the lease liability in accordance with 

IFRS 16, the incremental borrowing rate was estimated 

by management using the current Group’s lending rate 

for similar assets for a similar term in a similar economic 

environment.

Finance cost are charged to profit or loss over the lease 

period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest 

on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

 

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing 

the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 

(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the 

carrying amount to reflect lease payments made.

   

IFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient 

for lessees accounting for rent concessions that arise as 

a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, refer to 

note 2 for detail.  The group elected to apply the practical 

expedient introduced by the amendments to all rent 

concessions that satisfy the criteria.

Right-of-use-assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the 

following:

• The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability 

and

• Any initial direct costs

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 

over the shorter period of the lease term and useful life 

of the underlying asset. The depreciation charge for each 

year is recognised in profit or loss.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost    

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment 

and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a 

straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-

term leases are leases with a lease  term of 12 months or 

less. Low-value assets comprise mainly IT equipment with 

a cost of fifty thousand rand or less.

Group as lessor 

Initial measurement and recognition

Lease income is recognised in profit or loss as other income 

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The difference between the amounts recognised as income 

and the contractual payments are recognised as a lease 

asset in the statement of financial position. This asset is 

not discounted.

1.12 INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of medical merchandise, which is 

measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The 

cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and 

other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 

present location and condition. The cost includes transport 

and handling costs but excludes interest charges.

Costs are determined for medical merchandise on the 

weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 

ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 

completion and selling expenses.

Write-downs to net realisable value and inventory losses 

are expensed to cost of sales in the period in which the 

write-downs or losses occur.

When inventories are sold/used in procedures, the carrying 

amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense 

in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.
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1.13 STATED CAPITAL AND EQUITY

Ordinary shares are recognised at no par value and 

classified as stated capital in equity.  Incremental costs 

directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 

recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 

effects.

1.14 EQUITY RESERVE

This reserve is as a result of accounting for the reverse  

acquisition in terms of IFRS 3: Business Combinations. 

The standard requires the stated capital disclosed to be 

that of the legal parent or accounting subsidiary (being  

Advanced), while the net issued capital has to be that of  

the accounting  acquirer or legal subsidiary (Presmed) as 

adjusted for the number of equity instruments it would 

have had to issue to acquire the various accounting 

subsidiaries as determined when calculating the purchase 

consideration for the acquisition, and shares issued 

subsequent to the acquisition transactions.

1.15 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group :

• has a present  obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event. 

• It is probable that the Group will be required   to settle 

the obligation 

•  a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the present 

value of the consideration required to settle the present     

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking 

into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation. 

1.16 EMPLOYEE COSTS

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable 

within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 

vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary 

benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period 

in which the service is rendered and are not discounted. 

Long-term employee benefits

 Includes:

• Long service leave

• The expected cost of long service leave not expected 

to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date.

Post-employment benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under 

which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate 

entity. Each member’s fund value is directly linked to the 

contributions and the related investment returns. The Group 

has no legal or constructive obligations to make further 

contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets 

to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee 

service in the current and prior periods. The contributions 

are recognised as employee  benefit expenses when they 

are due.

Accounting treatment

The expected cost of compensated absences is     

recognised as an expense as the employees render 

services that increase their entitlement, or in the case of 

non-accumulated absences, when the absence occurs.

Long-term employee benefits are measured at the present 

value of expected future payments to be made in respect 

of services provided by employees up to the reporting date 

using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is 

given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience 

of employee departures and periods of service.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments 

is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 

constructive obligation to make such payments  as a result 

of past performance.

Share-based payments

The Group has entered into equity-settled share-based 

payments with certain employees. The fair value of options 

granted is recognised as an expense with a corresponding 

increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date 

and is spread over the period during which the employees 

become unconditionally entitled to the option. Fair value is 

measured using  the Black-Scholes model considering the 

terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. 

The Group reviews at each reporting date its estimate of 

the number of options that are expected to vest based 

on the non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the 

revision to original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit 

or loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Share-based payments granted that do not vest until the 

counterparty completes a specified period of service, 

are accounted for as the services, are rendered by the 

counterparty.

The key assumptions for early-exercise multiple, risk- free 

rate, share price volatility and dividend yield are based on 

management’s best estimate at the date of valuation.
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1.17 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 

RESERVE

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including 

goodwill and fair-value   adjustments arising on acquisitions, 

are translated into rand using the closing exchange rates at 

the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign 

operations are translated into rand at reporting date using 

the average rate.

Any foreign exchange differences arising on translation 

are recognised in other comprehensive income and 

accumulated in the translation reserve, except to the 

extent that the translations difference is allocated to non-

controlling interest.

1.18 BORROWING COSTS

There are no qualifying assets for capitalisation of 

borrowing costs.  All borrowing costs are recognised as an 

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 

• the profit attributable to owners of the company, 

excluding any costs of servicing equity other than 

ordinary shares

• by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the 

determination of basic earnings per share to take into 

account: 

• the after-income tax effect of interest and other 

financing costs associated with dilutive potential 

ordinary shares, and 

• the weighted average number of additional ordinary 

shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

1.20 REVENUE

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue comprises fees earned from day admissions. 

Revenue is derived from same-day medical procedures 

performed for which patients either need pre- authorisation 

from medical aids or a paid deposit upfront. The patient 

is admitted and discharged on the same day. When the 

Group enters into an agreement with a patient, goods and 

services deliverable under the agreement are not identified 

as separate performance obligations to the extent that 

the patient cannot benefit from the goods and services 

individually. The goods and services are not considered 

distinct, they are highly interrelated. The Group has also 

determined that there are no contracts with variable 

consideration components. Revenue generated from day 

admissions  is recognised at a point in time on satisfaction 

of the promised obligation of performing the required  

procedure on the patient. Each service provided and good 

sold do not constitute a separate performance obligation 

as the performance obligation is the discharge of a patient 

on completion of the day case.

Determining transaction price

South African Operations

The transaction price for each good sold or service 

provided by the Group is determined based on a set tariff 

list as negotiated by the NHN (National Hospital Network), 

with funders on behalf of the members of the network as 

allowed by the Competition Commission. The list details 

the set tariff that can be charged for each good sold or 

service provided by the member hospitals in the network. 

The Group is a member of the NHN. NHN distributes 

the contracted set tariffs annually to respective vendors 

(subject to confidentiality agreements for which any breach 

has severe penalties) who then update the billing system 

used by the Group to invoice patients. For each procedure 

performed, there is a set tariff for the service provided or 

good used. This is the amount of consideration that the 

entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring 

the goods and services excluding value-added tax. The 

transaction price for private patients are set internally. This 

revenue is not more than 5% of total revenue and cases.

Australian Operations

Facility fees consist of theatre fees, accommodation and 

prosthesis reimbursements. Approximately 60% of patients 

are billed based on a term fee for service and the remaining 

40% billed based on a term case payment. Term fee for 

service billing involves the separate billing of theatre fees, 

accommodation and prosthesis reimbursements based on 

time spent in theatre, equipment and drugs used during 

the procedure whereas the term case payment billing is 

a fixed amount inclusive of theatre fees, accommodation 

and prosthesis reimbursements regardless of inputs used 

during a procedure. Billing for term fee for service cases is 

determined through Health Fund Agreements with each 

facility and prosthesis billing.
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Allocation of transaction price

The fees charged in the performance of the same-day medical procedure, for each component, are separately identifiable 

stand-alone prices and therefore no estimation is required in allocating of the fees to the performance obligation.

Practical expedient

The Group has taken advantage of the practical exemption not to account for significant financing components where the 

time difference between receiving consideration and transferring controls of goods and services is one year or less.

Description Includes Recognition Measurement

Provision 

of 

healthcare 

services

Sale of 

goods

Same-day medication 

and medical supplies.

Revenue is recognised at a 

point in time on completion 

of the day case upon 

discharge of the patient.

This occurs on the same 

day as the admission of the 

patient.

Transaction price is 

determined based on set 

tariff list which details per 

component stand- alone 

price that can be charged.

Rendering 

of services

Ward fees

Theatre fees

Fixed fees

Use of equipment

1.21 OTHER INCOME

Other 

income

Rental 

income

Received and accrued. On a straight-line basis over 

the term of the lease.

Allocation of lease 

payments over the lease 

term.

Interest 

income

Interest earned is recognised 

at it accrues, using the 

effective interest rate 

method.

Effective interest rate 

method.

Dividends 

received

When the right to receive 

payment has been 

established.

Amount declared.
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NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

2.1 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE FOR THE 30 JUNE 2021  

FINANCIAL PERIOD

Standard / 
interpretation Description of change and impact of application 

IFRS 16 Leases: 

COVID-19 

related rent 

concessions: 

amendments to 

IFRS 16

Annual periods 

beginning on or 

after

01 June 2020

Covid-19 related rent concessions

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 16 which provide relief for lessees in 

accounting for rent concessions granted as a direct consequence of Covid-19. Management made 

the following assessment:

• The relief granted by lessors occurred as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 Pandemic.

• The change in lease payments resulted in the revised consideration being the same or less than 

the consideration immediately preceding the change.

• The reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30 June 2022.

• There is no other substantive change to the terms and conditions of the leases.

The Group received a R0.1 million in COVID-19 rent concessions from landlords. The Group has 

elected to apply the practical expedient to not account for the change in lease payments as a lease 

modification. Payments have been accounted for as variable lease payments and the concession 

accounted for in profit or loss. The practical expedient has been applied consistently to all rent 

concessions that meet the criteria.

IFRS 3 Business 

Combinations 

(Amendments: 

Definition of a 

Business)

1 January 2020

• Clarifies that a minimum requirement for a business includes inputs and a substantive process 

that together significantly contribute to create outputs. 

• Narrows the definition of a business and outputs by placing emphasis on goods and services 

provided to customers and de-emphasising the ability to reduce costs. 

• Adds an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an asset 

or a group of similar assets is not a business. 

• There is no effect of this change in the Group financials.
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2.2 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY ADOPTED

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations are expected to have an impact on the annual financial 

statements in the period of initial application.

Standard / 
interpretation

Effective 
date Description of change

Description  
of impact

IFRS 9

Financial 

Instruments

1 January 

2022

Amendment: Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition 

of financial liabilities.

Clarifies which fees must be applied in the application 

of the ‘10 per cent’ test when assessing whether to 

derecognise a financial liability. Only include fees paid or 

received between the borrower and the lender, including 

those paid or received on the other’s behalf.

The 

amendments 

have no impact 

on the Group.

IAS 37 Provisions, 

Contingent 

Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets 

(Amendment – 

Onerous Contracts 

– Cost of Fulfilling 

a Contract)

1 January 

2022

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37, which 

specify the costs a company includes when assessing 

whether a contract will be loss- making and is therefore 

recognised as an onerous contract. These amendments 

are expected to result in more contracts being accounted 

for as onerous contracts because they increase the 

scope of costs that are included in the onerous contract 

assessment. 

The impact of 

this standard 

has not been 

assessed by the 

Group yet but 

is expected to 

low.

IAS 16 Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment 

(Amendment – 

Proceeds before 

Intended Use)

1 January 

2022

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 16, 

which prohibit a company from deducting amounts 

received from selling items produced while the company 

is preparing the asset for its intended use from the cost 

of property, plant and equipment. Instead, a company will 

recognise such sales proceeds and any related costs in 

profit or loss. 

The 

amendments 

have no impact 

on the Group.

IAS 8 Accounting 

Policies, Changes 

in Accounting 

Estimates 

and Errors 

(Amendment 

- Definition of 

Accounting 

Estimates

1 January 

2023

• Distinguishes clearly between a change in accounting 

policy and a change in accounting estimate. 

• Revises the definition of an accounting estimate. 

• Provides reworded and specific examples of accounting 

estimates. 

• Clarifies that measurement techniques and inputs used 

in developing accounting estimates are not accounting 

policies. 

The impact of 

this standard 

has not been 

assessed by the 

Group yet.

IAS 12 Income 

Taxes (Amendment 

- Deferred Tax 

related to Assets 

and Liabilities 

arising from a 

Single Transaction) 

1 January 

2023

• Narrows the scope of the exemption for recognition 

of taxable/deductible temporary differences that arise 

on certain transactions. The transaction should not 

give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary 

differences. 

• Clarifies that deferred tax must be recognised on 

initial recognition of IFRS 16 leases and similar types 

of transactions that give rise to the recognition of 

an asset and a liability, such as decommissioning, 

restoration and similar liabilities with corresponding 

amounts recognised as part of the related asset. 

The impact of 

this standard 

has not been 

assessed by the 

Group yet.
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Standard / 
interpretation

Effective 
date Description of change

Description  
of impact

IAS 1 Presentation 

of Financial 

Statements

1 January 

2023

Amendment - Classification of Liabilities as Current or 

Non-current: 

• Classification to be based on whether the right to defer 

settlement by at least twelve months exists at the end 

of the reporting period. 

• Classification is unaffected by expectation of 

settlement. 

• Settlement refers to transfer of cash equity instruments, 

other assets or services. 

• Clarifies that only if an embedded derivative in a 

convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would 

the terms of a liability not impact its classification. 

Amendment - Disclosure of Accounting Policies:

• Accounting policies to be disclosed where the 

information is material, by nature or amount. 

• Explains when accounting policy information is 

considered material. 

• Clarifies that when an entity chooses to disclose an 

immaterial accounting policy, it must not obscure or 

affect other material or required disclosures. 

The impact of 

this standard 

has not been 

assessed by the 

Group yet.

IFRS 3 Business 

Combinations 

(Amendment- 

Reference to 

the Conceptual 

Framework)

1 January 

2022

• Update to refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework; 

• Adds a requirement that transactions and other 

events within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 must be 

accounted for per IAS 37 and IFRIC 21 to identify the 

liabilities assumed in a business combination; and 

• Adds an explicit statement that an acquirer does not 

recognise contingent assets acquired in a business 

combination. 

The impact of 

this standard 

has not been 

assessed by the 

Group yet.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SEGMENT REPORT 

Segment information is presented only at Group level, where it is most meaningful. Operating segments are identified on 

the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the CEO in order to allocate 

resources to the segment and to assess its performance. The segments are based on the geographical location, corporate 

is Advanced “the company”.

The Group’s operating segments as mentioned below:

• South Africa: This operating segment focuses on provision of same-day surgical procedures within the South African 

consumer market and rendering of management services to the South African Group of companies.

• Australia: This operating segment focuses on provision of same-day surgical procedures within the Australian market 

and rendering of management services to the Australian Group of companies. 

• Corporate: This operating segment is the company Advanced Health Limited (“AVL”) and it renders management 

services to both the South African and Australian Group of companies.  

South Africa Australia Corporate Total

 Audited  
June 
2021

Audited  
June 
2020

Audited  
June 
2021

Audited  
June 
2020

Audited  
June 
2021

Audited  
June 
2020

Audited  
June 
2021

Audited  
June 
2020

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Revenue from customers  229,525  176,965  451,150  299,255  -    -    680,675  476,220 
Cost of sales  (126,991)  (104,666)  (221,417)  (156,963)  -    -    (348,408)  (261,629)
Expected credit losses  (446)  (3,968)  -    -    -    -    (446)  (3,968)
Other income  12,170  4,362  5,355  13,442  1,726  2,527  19,250  20,331 
Equity accounted profit  -    -    5,114  -    -    -    5,114  -   

Interest income  192  573  694  743  -    -    886  1,316 
Interest expense  (45,317)  (49,001)  (14,575)  (14,355)  (7,652)  (2,941)  (67,543)  (66,297)
Other operating expenses  (49,276)  (46,591)  (46,081)  (45,661)  (5,081)  (8,470)  (100,438)  (100,722)
Staff costs  (27,654)  (34,957)  (63,285)  (47,208)  (4,985)  (982)  (95,924)  (83,147)
Depreciation and amortisation  (36,462)  (45,063)  (31,749)  (30,544)  (604)  (605)  (68,815)  (76,212)
Income tax  (3,421)  (30,019)  (22,692)  (4,355)  2,338  (5,359)  (23,775)  (39,733)
Profit/(loss) for the year  (47,680)  (132,365)  62,514  14,354  (14,258)  (15,830)  576  (133,841)

Total assets  361,896  538,609  557,804  533,945  6,568  5,696  926,268  1,078,250 
- Assets held for sale  18,874  202,705  -    -    -    -    18,874  202,705 
Total liabilitities  (307,000)  (473,549)  (337,356)  (353,238)  (102,170)  (97,105)  (746,527)  (923,892)
- Liabilities held for sale  (21,387)  (196,763)  -    -   -  -    (21,387)  (196,763)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit  

represents the profit earned by each segment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments. Goodwill, deferred tax and current tax receivable/payable are allocated to 

the segment they relate to. Assets used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the  revenues earned by 

individual reportable segments. All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments. Liabilities for which reportable segments 

are jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets. Assets and liabilities of the corporate segment include assets 

and liabilities of AVL.

The revenue from external parties and all other items of income, expenses, profits and losses reported in the segment  report 

is measured in a manner consistent with that in the statement of comprehensive income.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

2021 2020

Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
amount Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
amount

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Medical equipment - Owned  182,879  (87,496)  95,383 89,852  (29,184) 60,668
Medical equipment - Right of use  3,859  (1,828)  2,030 78,410  (47,088) 31,322
Furniture and fixtures  45,004  (28,550)  16,454 40,720  (27,140) 13,580
Plant and machinery  27,921  (16,569)  11,352 28,199  (16,756) 11,443
Leasehold improvements  119,528  (29,806)  89,723 125,286  (25,693) 99,593
Motor vehicles  275  (228)  47 306  (235) 71
Computer equipment  6,655  (5,081)  1,574 5,808  (4,415) 1,393
Office equipment  4,242  (3,554)  688 4,404  (3,670) 734
Buildings - Right of use  401,417  (51,991)  349,426 440,705  (30,801) 409,904
Total  791,780  (225,103) 566,676 813,690  (184,982) 628,708

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
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R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021
Opening balance  60,668  31,322  13,580  11,443  99,593  71  1,393  734  409,905 628,708
Additions  4,941  -    2,011  1,202  3,699  -    91  399  17,556 29,899
Reclassified from assets 
held for sale  19,930  -    4,389  1,282  84  -    826  -    73,998 100,509
Reclassification between 
owned and rights of use  27,536  (27,536)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disposals  (1,103)  -    -    (7)  -    -    (4)  -    (204) (1,319)
Depreciation  (15,317)  (605)  (2,950)  (1,952)  (5,570)  (17)  (713)  (385)  (35,334)  (62,843)
Effect of translation  (1,170)  (1,151)  (571)  (559)  (8,074)  (7)  (8)  (60)  (23,665)  (35,265)
Impairment  (102)  -    (5)  (57)  (9)  -    (11)  -    -    (184)
Lease modification*  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (92,830)  (92,830)

95,383  2,030  16,454  11,352  89,723  47  1,574  688  349,426 566,676

2020
Opening balance  126,503  -    23,096  15,277  90,871  78  2,805  969  607,726  867,325 
Initial Recognition  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (23,890) (23,890) 
Additions  15,504  -    1,116  523  252  -    647  161  -    18,203 
Reclassified from assets 
held for sale

 
(34,932)  -    (7,030)  (2,684)  (302)  -    (1,169)  -   

 
(135,977)  (182,094)

Reclassification between 
owned and rights of use  (35,541)  35,541  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disposals  (2,266)  -    (6)  (478)  -    -    -    (6)  -    (2,756)
Depreciation  (13,209) (4,219)  (4,663)  (2,283)  (5,408)  (21)  (920)  (534)  (35,650)  (66,907)
Effect of translation  4,609  -    1,067  1,088  14,180  13  30  143  (2,304)  18,826 

60,668  31,322  13,580  11,443  99,593  71  1,393  733 409,905 628,708

* The group reviewed its lease contracts in March 2021. The majority of the group’s facilities have a fixed 10 year lease period with a further 10 year 
extension option. The 10 year extension option was taken into account in the initial calculation of lease liabilities and right of use assets when 
IFRS16 became effective as it was reasonably certain that the entity would exercise this option at the end of the lease. 
 
The directors no longer consider it reasonably certain that the entity will exercise some of the extension options on certain entities and 
accordingly the lease terms were amended. The change of the lease term resulted in a decrease of R92.8million of both right of use assets and 
lease liabilities. 

All disposals of assets result from the sale, scrapping and replacement thereof in the normal course of business.

Certain assets amounting to the gross value of R46.9 million (2020: R54.7 million) are pledged as security for a loan owed 
to ABSA (refer to note 15).
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Property, plant and equipment comprise owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of investment property. 

   

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Owned  215,220 187,482

Right-of-use-assets  351,456 441,226

Total 566,676 628,708

A register containing the information required by regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations is available for inspection 

at the registered office of the company.

5. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

Presmed Australia’s core growth strategy is to increase its portfolio and footprint in the day hospital industry in Australia 

through strategic investment in and/ or acquisition of profitable day hospitals. In line with this, during the year Presmed 

Australia increased their shareholding in Metwest by 19% resulting in a total holding of 38%. Metwest is a profitable day hospital 

with 1 theatre supported by 9 surgeons. The investment in Metwest was previously carried at fair value. After acquiring the 

additional shares the Group has significant influence over Metwest as defined in IAS 28 and accordingly the investment is 

accounted for as an investment in an associate using the equity method. At the date when the addition % in Metwest was 

acquired, the purchase consideration was equal to the fair value, therefore no gain or loss recorded on de-recognition.

2021

R’000

Beginning at the beginning of the period -

Purchase of additional 19% 15,728

Reclassification of investment previously accounted under IFRS 9 14,406

Equity accounted profits 5,114

Closing balance 35,248

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income of associate

Revenue 44,592

Other income and expenses (23,411)

Profit before tax 21,181

Tax expense (7,719)

Profit from operations 13,462

Total comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income 13,462

Summarised Statement of Financial Position of associate

Assets

Non-current 6,887

Current 29,585

Total assets 36,472

Liabilities

Non-current (4,387)

Current (7,038)

Total liabilities (11,425)

Net assets 25,048
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6. GOODWILL

2021 2020

Cost
Accumulated 

impairment
Carrying 
amount Cost

Accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
amount

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goodwill 31,395 (10,412) 20,983 33,700 (4,742) 28,958
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R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021
Goodwill 28,958 (5,669) (2,305) 20,983

2020
Goodwill 29,669 (4,743) 4,032 28,958

As at 30 June 2021, management decided to impair the full goodwill amounting to R5.7million (2020: R4.7 million for De la 

vie) relating to the Medgate cash generating unit as the recoverable amount was less than the carrying amount. Medgate 

performed substantially worse than forecasted in the year under review. Based on revised forecasts the company would only 

start generating profits in the 2025 financial year.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies that              

arose on acquisition.

The carrying amount of each CGU’s goodwill is considered significant in comparison of goodwill’s total carrying amount and 

was allocated as follows:

2021 2020

CGU R’000 R’000

Chatswood Private Hospital Pty Ltd 17,568 19,498

Madison Day Surgery Pty Ltd 3,415 3,791

Medgate Day Hospital Pty Ltd - 5,669

Total 20,983 28,958
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Key assumptions used in impairment testing for goodwill impaired in the current period

The recoverable amount of each operation’s goodwill is based on value in use calculations. The calculations are based  upon 

discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a risk-adjusted interest rate appropriate to the CGU, the determination  of both 

of which requires the exercise of judgement. While forecasts are compared with actual performance and external economic 

data, expected cash flows naturally reflect management’s estimstes of future performance.

The cash flow projections were based on the approved budgeted 2022 financial year results and growth for a further  five 

years thereafter, and a reasonable growth rate is applied thereafter based on current market conditions.

The discount rates used in the discounted cash flow models are calculated using the principles of the capital asset pricing 

model, considering the current market conditions in Australia.

A pre-tax weighted-average cost-of-capital rate of 9.49% were used in discounting the projected cash flows. Growth rates 

applied for the five-year period beyond the 2022 budget were 3.3% and the perpetuity growth rates applied were 3%. The 

growth rate is consistent with the long-term average of the industry.

Sensitivity

The Group have made estimates and assumptions in respect of impairment testing of cash generating units as detailed 

above. 

Discount rate: if the discount rate currently used increased by 1% (after incorporating any consequential effects of the 

charge on other inputs used in the recoverable amount estimate), the CGU’s recoverable amount would still exceed its 

carrying amount in the current and prior year.

Growth: if the assumed growth rate mentioned above reduced by 2.0% the CGU’s recoverable amount would still exceed its 

carrying amount.

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2021 2020

Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
amount

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
amount

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Customer relations 4,309 (4,238) 71 4,309 (2,755) 1,554
Licensing rights 34,714 (18,057) 16,657 31,743 (13,582) 18,161
Computer software 623 (533) 89 624 (510) 114

39,646 (22,828) 16,817 36,676 (16,847) 19,829
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Reconciliation of intangible assets
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R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021
Customer relations 1,554 - (1,052) - (431) - 71
Licensing rights 18,163 - (920) 3,517 (3,525) (579) 16,657
Computer software 114 - - 7 (33) - 89

19,829 - (1,972) 3,524 (3,989) (579) 16,817

2020
Customer relations 1,984 - - - (430) - 1,554
Licensing rights 28,569 509 - (8,034) (4,034) 1,151 18,161
Computer software 224 - - (11) (99) - 114

30,777 509 - (8,045) (4,563) 1,151 19,829

Customer relations and licensing rights related to the historical acquisition of Medgate Day Hospital Pty Ltd in South Africa, 

because of poor performance of Medgate in the year under review both the customer relations and licensing rights  were 

impaired in the current year.

The remaining average useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

2021 2020

Customer relations 1 4

Licensing rights 1 6
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8. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Non-current

Loans receivable 23,800 22,451

Investments – unlisted shares (level 3) 2,956 19,486

26,756 41,937

Currencies

The carrying amount of other financial assets is denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Rand 2,090 522

Australian dollar 24,666 41,415

26,756 41,937

(i) Loans receivable

Loans receivable comprises of:

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Epping Property Unit Trust (i) 7,629 7,757

Hornsby Eye Surgery (Pty) Ltd (ii) 2,439  -   

Dr M Jones (ii) 924 1,025

Labella (iii) 2,319 2,319

Dr J Yohendran (ii) 1,267 1,870

Dr N Kumar (ii) 420 568

Dr S Whitehouse (ii) 458 508

Dr S Lal (ii) 1,374 1,525

Roger Cronin (ii) 2,519 2,795

Feng Neal (ii) 2,519 2,795

Bank and rent guarantees 3,762 3,030

Other receivables 489 578

 26,119  24,770 

Allowances for credit losses

Labella (2,319) (2,319)

23,800 22,451

Loan receivables consist of several small loans to third parties and related parties (refer to Related parties, note 30). These 

loans are unsecured, bear interest up to the prime interest rate. The loans receivable is not expected to be repaid within the 

next 12 months.    

   

The loan is unsecured. The term of the loan is 5 years with a repayment date of 24 July 2022, along with an interest rate of 

5% per annum.  (i).   

The loans are not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months of the balance sheet date and are interest free (ii).  

 

The Labella loan was fully impaired in 2020 financial year. (iii)   
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Credit risk
For details of assessment of credit risk on loans and receivables, refer to the financial risk management note 30. Majority of the 

loans receivables are from Australian subsidiary where the risk of credit losses is considered to be immaterial.

(ii) Investments

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Investments – unlisted shares (level 3)

Metwest investment - 15 991

Other investments 2,956 3,495

2,956 19,486

During the year Presmed increased their shareholding in Metwest by 19% resulting in a total holding of 38%. The investment in 

Metwest was previously carried at fair value. There was no profit or loss on derecognition of the investment. After acquiring the 

additional shares the group has significant influence over Metwest as defined in IAS28 and accordingly the investment is accounted 

for as an investment in an associate using the equity method.

The investment in Metwest was acquired on 2 April 2019. The directors considered the cost to approximate the fair value on 30 

June 2020.

9. DEFERRED TAXATION

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Deferred tax is broken down as follows:

Accelerated allowances (9,647) (9,453)

Employee benefits 6,747 4,586

Prepayments (78) (119)

Assessed loss 32,535 38,368

Right-of-use asset (24,932) (46,086)

Lease liability 40,461 55,696

Other 263 2,340

Deferred tax asset 45,349 45,332

Reconciliation of deferred tax

At the beginning of the year 45,332 75,849

Prior period adjustment (898) 143

Originating and reversing temporary differences (326) (32,669)

Effect of translation 1,241 2,009

At the end of the year 45,349 45,332

The deferred tax asset will be utilised when the relevant subsidiaries start generating profits. The increase in the trend  

of patient numbers and the support from the medical schemes indicate that the deferred tax asset will be recovered.      

Tax losses amounting to R116.2  million (2020: R161,9 million) are available for set-off against future taxable income and 

deferred tax has been calculated on these values. No deferred tax was calculated on the assessed losses of R186.4 million  

(2020: R79.2 million) as certain subsidiaries had no sufficient evidence that they would have taxable income in the near 

future.
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10. INVENTORIES

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Medical merchandise 19,105 15,153

The cost of medical merchandise as expensed during the year under review was R239,6 million (2020: R178,5 million). During  

the year inventory which was expired and broken to the value of R385 000 (2020: 204 000) was written off.

11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Financial instruments

Trade receivables  42,348  30,306 

Loss allowance provision (490) (364) 

Other receivables  5,163  791 

Trade and other receivables at amortised cost  47,020  30,733 

Non-financial instruments

Deposits 16,045 293

Prepayments 865 1,166

Sales taxes 2,420 2,279

VAT  2,868 310

69,219 34,781

Included in other receivables is R4 million owed as part of the settlement of the Vergelegen sale transaction.

Currencies

The carrying amount of other financial assets is denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 23,205 12,074

Australian dollar 46,014 22,707

69,219 34,781

The current year’s deposits includes an amount of R15.2 million made to Devonport Eye Hospital Pty Ltd and Clearvis Pty 

Ltd relating to the purchase of a combined 20% interest in these hospitals.
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Expected credit loss (ECL) allowance:

The Group applied the simplified approach for providing for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the 

use of lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The loss allowance as at year end for Advanced South Africa 

is determined as follows:

Current
+30 day 
overdue

+60 day 
overdue

+90 day 
overdue

+120 day 
overdue

+150 day 
overdue Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021
Expected loss rate 0,14% 0,22% 1,74% 4,97% 9,84% 16,63% -
Gross carrying amount 9,706 1,202 700 277 205 2,574 14,665
Loss allowance (14) (3) (12) (14) (20) (428) (490)
Net carrying amount 9,692 1,199 688 263 185 2,147 14,175

2020
Expected loss rate 0,14% 0,22% 1,74% 4,97% 9,84% 16,63% -
Gross carrying amount 7,763 690 172 287 221 1,503 10,636
Loss allowance (11) (1) (3) (14) (22) (313) (364)
Net carrying amount 7,752 689 169 273 199 1,190 10,272

Expected credit losses was only recognized by the South African subsidiary, no credit loss allowance was recognized for 

Presmed Australia. This is because there were no defaults in this subsidiary for the past three years, the amounts in the age 

analysis above 60 days relates to monies due from the government hospital which has no credit risk. An assessment of the 

age analysis was done at reporting date with 84.83% of debtors in the current age grouping. 

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of trade receivables:

Simplified approach 2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 364 337

Increase in loss allowance in profit and loss 447 545

Bad debts written off (323) (527)

Effect of exchange rate translations 2 9

Closing balance 490 364

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of each class of trade and other receivables represents the maximum credit exposure. More information 

about the credit exposure of trade and other receivables is found in note 30.
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Bank and cash balances 107,218 59,777

Bank overdraft (11,417) (3,126)

95,801 56,651

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents the maximum credit exposure. The carrying amount of cash 

and cash equivalents is a reasonable approximation of its fair value due to its short-term nature. Advanced only invest with 

credit worthy banks, due to cash being available on demand no allowance for credit  losses was recognised.

There has been an increase in cash and cash equivalents compared to the year ended 30 June 2021 mainly as a result of the 

share issue in April 2021 through which cash of R49.4 million was generated.  Also boosting the cash flows was cash inflow 

of R16 million that was received from the disposal of Vergelegen. Cash generated from operations increased when compared 

to prior periods mainly as a result of higher revenue.

Currencies

The carrying amount of other financial assets is denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 23,496 (2,764)

Australian dollar 72,305 59,415

95,801 56,651

The overdraft facility as at reporting date is R16.2 million which comprises of R4.7 million of unused overdraft facility and 

R11.4 million used facility from Bank of Queensland with an interest rate of 6.90%.       
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13. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP

In the prior year the directors of the Group decided to dispose of four subsidiaries. The assets and liabilities attributable 

to these subsidiaries were classified as a disposal group as at 30 June 2020 and presented separately in the statement of 

financial position as disposal was expected to occur within 12 months. One facility (Advanced Vergelegen Surgical Centre 

Proprietary Limited) was sold  during the year under review. Soweto Day Hospital Proprietary Limited is in the process of 

being liquidated and is still classified as a disposal group. The results of Advanced Harbour Bay Surgical Centre Proprietary 

Limited and Advanced East Rand Day hospital improved during the year under review and the intention is no longer to 

sell these facilities. Accordingly the assets and liabilities of these entities were reclassified as they no longer form part of a 

disposal group. The impact of this reclassification was an increase in each category of assets and liabilities as stated below:

Audited  
2021

Other  
movements 

during the 
year

Reclassifica-
tion to  

operating 
assets

#Sale of 
Vergelegen

Audited 
2020

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 9,189 (1) (25,213) (11,714) 46,117
Right of use of asset 8,159 (22,378) (73,998) (31,441) 135,976
Intangible assets - (2,236) (3,524) (2,285) 8,045
Deferred taxation - (738) (766) (284) 1,788
Inventories 503 (177) (1,521) (948) 3,149
Trade and other receivables 1,021 (379) (2,972) (1,569) 5,940

Cash and Cash equivalents 3 (1) (1,684) (2) 1,690
Assets of disposal Groups 18,874 (25,910) (109,678) (48,245) 202,705

Liabilities
Borrowings 4,810 (8,395) (9,926) (4,144) 27,275

Lease Liability 14,845 (21,914) (81,035) (37,254) 155,048

Trade and other payables 1,729 (1,868) (7,620) (2,439) 13,656

Tax payable 3 (781) - - 784

Liabilities of disposal Groups 21,387 (32,958) (98,581) (43,837) 196,763

The other movements consist of transactions that happened in Soweto Day Hospital Proprietary Limited during the year, 

included was a lease modification that resulted in a reduction of the ROU asset and lease liability by R22.4 million. A trading 

licence valued at R2.2 million which was previously reported under intangible assets was impaired during the year.

# Advanced Vergelegen Surgical Centre, which was part of the South African operation was sold in April 2021. In terms of 

the sales agreement, all property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and lease rights and liabilities were  sold for R16.4 

million at a profit of R2.5 million. The now dormant legal entity still forms part of the group.
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14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Financial instruments
Trade payables  36,578  35,999 
Viability payment  -    8,392 

 36,578  44,391 

Non-financial instruments 
Employee accruals and benefits  3,858  4,933 
Leave accrual  8,403  5,170 
VAT and Australian tax  2,933  5,352 
General accruals  7,446  2,224 

 59,218  62,070 

The viability payment liability decreased in the current year due to the State Government support for the facilities not being 

offered in current year as they did not require the assistance of private hospitals like they did in the prior year.

Included in general accruals are debtors with credit balances, accounting and audit fees.

Currencies

The carrying amount of other financial assets is denominated in the following currencies:

SA Rand  30,798  28,628 
Australian dollar  28,420  33,442 

 59,218  62,070 

The average credit period on purchases of goods and services is 30 days (2020: 30 days). Trade payables are subject to 

normal industry settlement terms.
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15. BORROWINGS

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Held at amortised cost
Eenhede Konsultante Proprietary Limited (“Eenhede”) 124,645 119,610
ABSA Bank Limited 42,120 29,798
IEMAS 5,747 6,941
Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein) 3,150 5,121
CA & JL Grillenberger - 4,785
Davillar Superannuation Fund 2,694 4,486
Other 14,224 10,883

192,580 181,629
Split between non-current and current portions
Non-current 147,575 150,792
Eenhede Konsultante Proprietary Limited 111,980 106,972
ABSA Bank Limited 27,211 25,263
IEMAS 4,070 5,670
Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein) 1,801 1,999
Other 2,513 10,888
Current 45,005 30,838
ABSA Bank Limited 14,909 4,535
Eenhede Konsultante Proprietary Limited 12,665 12,638
IEMAS 1,677 1,271
Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein) 1,349 3,123
CA & JL Grillenberger - 4,785
Davillar Superannuation Fund 2,694 4,486
Other 11,711 -

192,580 181,629

Currencies

The carrying amount of other financial assets is denominated in the following currencies:

SA rand 157,516 135,589
Australian dollar 35,064 46,040

192,580 181,629

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Balance at the beginning of the period 181,629 200,171
Interest 18,667 22,764
Additions 20,000 34,640
Transfer from (to) disposal group 14,137 (27,275)
Foreign exchange movements (4,797) 7,857
Repayments (37,056) (56,528)
Capital (29,519) (46,561)
Interest (7,537) (9,967)

192,580 181,629
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Eenhede

In Australia the loan of R26.5 million (2020: R28.0 million) is unsecured and bears interest at 5,5% (2020: 7,75%) per annum. 

In South Africa the loan of R98.1 million (2020: R91.6 million) is secured with Presmed shares and bears interest at 7.5% 

(2020: 7.5%) per annum, the interest rate is linked to prime. In the event that South African operation defaults as per the 

agreement, the company has to forfeit 515,106  (2020: 515,106) shares in Presmed. The current portion in relation to Australia 

operation is expected to be settled within 12 months. In South Africa the loan is payable in full on the 30th of April 2022, 

the loan will not be payable if the liquidity of the company does not allow. As it is unlikely that the company’s liquidity will 

allow based on the entity’s current financial position, the loan was classified as a non-current liability.

Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein) in Australia

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 5,50% (2020 : 5,50%) per annum. The short-term loan is R1.35 million which is 

payable on demand. The long-term portion is not payable before 31 July 2022. 

IEMAS

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at South African prime plus 2% (9%). The monthly installments are R170,238 over 

60 months. The last installment is payable in September 2024.

CA & JL Grillenberger

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 5.5% per annum. The loan was repaid in full during the current year.

Davillar Superannuation Fund

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 5.5% per annum. The loan is not payable before 1 January 2022.

Other borrowings

Other borrowings consist of several smaller loans from doctors and shareholders. The loans are unsecured and bear interest 

between 5,50% and 10,75% per annum (2020 : 5,50% - 10,00% per annum). The loans from South African operations bears 

interest between 7,00% and 10,75% per annum, while Australia loans bears interest of 5,5% per annum. The portion relating 

to short-term is payable on demand and the long-term portion is not payable before 1 July 2022.  

ABSA Bank Limited

The loan has a limited surety for R46.9 million (2020: R54,7 million) and bears fixed interest between 11,25% and 12,25% per 

annum. Various agreements are held by for each hospital, of which interest rates and contract terms vary. The total monthly 

installments are R1.6 million and will be fully paid by 31 January 2026.

Limited sureties for the ABSA Bank Limited loan are as follows:

 

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Advanced 46,925 54,694
Advanced Knysna Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited  4,773 4,863
Advanced Durbanville Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited  3,758 3,926
Advanced Groenkloof Day Hospital Proprietary Limited  7,494 7,398
Advanced Panorama Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited  5,309 5,551
Advanced Worcester Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited  3,907 4,005
Advanced Vergelegen Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited  -   4,919
Soweto Private Hospital Proprietary Limited  4,809 5,004
Advanced De La Vie Day Hospital Proprietary Limited  3,475 3,567
Advanced East Rand Day Hospital Proprietary Limited  7,407 7,875
Advanced Harbour Bay Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited  5,993 6,586
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16. LEASE LIABILITIES

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Minimum lease payments due
    - Within 1 year  52,103 53,799
    - Later than 1 year but no later than 5 years  226,027 184,062
    - Later than 5 years  444,518 682,052

 722,647 919,413
Less: future finance charges  (290,783) (452,239)
Present value of minimum lease payments  431,864 467,674

Present value of minimum lease payments due:

Within 1 year  18,451 30,549

Later than 1 year but no later than 5 years  98,773 35,650
Later than 5 years  314,639 401,475

 431,864 467,674
Non-current  413,413 437,125
Current  18,451 30,549

 431,864 467,674

Balance at the beginning of the period 467,474 20,850
Recognition on first time adoption of IFRS 16 - 607,726
Interest 48,857 51,398
Additions 17 568 -
Lease modification (92,830) -
Liabilities of a disposal group 91,042 (155,048)
Foreign exchange movements (35,020) 1,354
Repayments (65,227) (58,606)

Capital (16,013) (17,503)

Interest (49,214) (41,103)

431,864 467,674

The Group entered into leases for certain medical equipment and buildings.  Rental contracts are entered for fixed periods, 

with remaining lease term of between 1-10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide 

range of different terms and conditions, and current lease agreements do not impose any covenants.  The extension option 

has been included in the leases where the directors consider it reasonably certain that the entity will exercise the extension 

option. The right-of-use asset is disclosed under note 4.

The effective borrowing rates are between 4,28% and 5.00% for Australia and 12,55% for South Africa. To determine the 

borrowing rate, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate, based on the recent third party financing received. Lease 

payments are allocated between principal and interest costs. The interest cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease 

period and capitalised on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

IFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient for lessees accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct 

consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, refer to note 2 for detail.  Advanced elected to apply the practical expedient 

introduced by the amendments to all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria.

The group reviewed its lease contracts in March 2021. The majority of the group’s facilities have a fixed 10 year lease period 

with a further 10 year extension option. The 10 year extension option was taken into account in the initial calculation of lease 

liabilities and right of use assets when IFRS16 became effective as it was reasonably certain that the entity would exercise 

this option at the end of the lease.

The directors no longer consider it reasonably certain that the entity will exercise some of the extension options on certain 

entities and accordingly the lease terms were amended. The change of the lease term resulted in a decrease of R92.8million 

of both right of use assets and lease liabilities.  
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17. PROVISIONS 

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Provision for time in lieu - 162
Provision for long service leave  6,403 6,385
Provision Employment Oncost  605 761
Provision for profit participation 6,886 3,671

13,894 10,979

Current 12,794 9,975
Non-current 1,100 1,004

13,894 10,979

Profit 
articipation 

Long 
Service 

Leave

Provision 
Employment 

Oncost and 
Time in Lieu

Total

Opening balance - 1 July 2020  3,671  6,385  923  10,979 
Provision accrued  14,211  895  541  15,647 
Provision utilised  (10,729)  (262)  (238)  (11,229)
Effect of translation of foreign operations  (267)  (614)  (621)  (1,503)
Closing balance - 30 June 2021  6,886  6,403  605  13,894 

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts provided for long service leave entitlement in Presmed. The non-

current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long-service leave entitlements that have not yet  vested 

in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service. The current portion for this 

provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements that have vested due to employees  having 

completed the required period of service.

The provision for profit participation is calculated at 10% of the consolidated net profit before tax resulting from trading 

operations of Presmed Australia.    

Employees oncosts provision relates to superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation. They are calculated as a % 

of the total employment cost of employees: 

Superannuation - 10,00%    

Payroll tax - 4,85%    

Workers compensation - 1,59%    

18. STATED CAPITAL

2021 2020

Authorised

Ordinary shares of no par value (000) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000 1,000,000
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Shares
Stated 
capital

 Equity 
reserve*

Total

000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 287,988 310,423 (88,467) 221,956
Ordinary shares issued 210,796 49,421 - 49,421
In issue at the end of the period 498,784 359,844 (88,467) 271,377
2020
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 287,988 310,423 (88,467) 221,956
Ordinary shares issued - - - -
In issue at the end of the period 287,988 310,423 (88,467) 221,956

* The equity reserve arose as a result of accounting for a reverse acquisition in terms of IFRS 3: Business Combination. This standard requires the 
stated capital disclosed to be that of the legal parent or accounting subsidiary (Advanced), whilst the net issued capital has to be that of the 
accounting acquirer or legal subsidiary (Presmed) as adjusted for the number of equity instruments it would have had to issue to acquire the 
various accounting subsidiaries as determined when calculating the purchase consideration for the acquisition, and shares issued subsequent to 
the acquisition transactions.

(i) Ordinary shares

On 15 March 2021 the Company invited its shareholders to subscribe to a rights issue of 279 million ordinary shares at an 

issue price of 24 cents per share on the basis of 97.02357 shares for every 100 ordinary shares held. 211 million ordinary 

shares were issued to the value of R50.6million, with issue costs of R1.2million incurred.  At 30 June 2021, the authorised 

share capital comprised 1 billion no par value shares.  The Company has issued share capital of 499 million shares of no par 

value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote 

per share at meetings of the company. All shares rank equally with regard to the company’s residual assets.

(ii) Dividends

No dividends were declared or paid to the ordinary shareholders by the Company (2020: Rnil). An amount of R10.7 million 

(2020: R10.2 million) was declared to the minority shareholders as dividends during the year.

19. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share option scheme 1

MC Resnik through his investment company, Kinser Investments, was granted an option to subscribe for 76,672 Presmed 

shares (being 10% of authorised stated capital in Presmed) at a subscription price of AUD8,00 per Presmed share, exercisable 

for a period of 10 years commencing 26 June 2012.

2021 2020

No. of shares
Subscription 

price No. of shares
Subscription 

price

Share option scheme 1
Outstanding at the beginning and end of the year 76,762 AUD8.00 76,762 AUD8.00

The Fair value at grant date is independently determined using an adjusted form of the Black-Scholes-Merton model:

The model inputs for share option during the period ended 30 June 2021 included:

a) Share price at grant date: AUD8.00

b) Grant date: 26 June 2012

c) Excercise period: 10 years

d) Remaining exercise period: 1 year
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 Strike 
price  

Grant date
Period 

granted

Number of 
shares
 ‘000

(Advanced)

Number of 
shares 

 
(Presmed)

Scheme issued on 26 June 2012 in Presmed
MC Resnik AUD8 26/06/12  10 years - 76,672

- 76,672

20. REVENUE

Audited 
June 2021

Audited 
June 2020

R’000 R’000

Rendering of services
Included in revenue from contracts with patients:
Theatre fees  385,535  233,153 
Accommodation fees  23,166  20,740 
Facility fees  165,620  132,786 
Equipment and fixed fees  12,793  21,384 

 587,114  408,063 
Sale of goods
Included in revenue from sale of goods to patients:
Drug revenue  90,408  64,708 
Gases revenue  3,154  3,449 

 93,561  68,157 
Total revenue  680,675  476,220 

Revenue from rendering of services and sale of goods are all recognised at a point in time. The Group’s principal activities 

to generate its revenue is to provide same-day healthcare facilities. There is no significant financing component  within the 

payment terms of patient accounts. Refer to note 3 for segmental information  that also discloses the revenue disaggregation 

per geographical location.

21. OTHER INCOME

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Dividends income 1,881 367
Rental income 5,313 2,511
Australia COVID-19 relief funds                   2,154 3,278
Government viability payment - 8,431
Employment incentive tax   6,352 -
Foreign translation gains - 2,115
Sundry income 3,550 4,084

19,250 20,786
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22. IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Medgate goodwill  5,669  -   
De la vie goodwill  -    4,743 
Soweto license to trade  2,236  -   
Property Plant and Equipment  183  -   
Customer relations and licensing rights  1,801  -   

 9,889  4,743 

23. OPERATING EXPENSES 

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Operating expenses include the following:
Amortisation 3,989 4,563
Depreciation 62,843 66,906
Consulting fees 22,097 15,605
Total staff costs 91,397 87,063
Directors’ emoluments 4,572 15,274
General staff costs 86,825 71,458

Direct employment costs are included in costs of sales. R108,8 million (2020: R83,1 million) of the group direct payroll costs 

was included as part of cost of sales.  

24. INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank 256 1,096
Other financial instruments 630 478
Related parties - 226

886 1,800

25. FINANCE COSTS

Other financial instruments (note 15) 18,687 22,764
Lease liabilities (note 16) 48,857 51,398

67,544 74,162
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26. TAXATION

South African normal tax
- Current year tax 252 2,225
- Local income tax – prior year (542) -
Foreign normal taxation - -
- Current year 23,951 6,749
Current taxation 23,661 8,975
Deferred taxation - -
- Prior year under provision ** (898) (143)
- Current year temporary differences 1,012 30,901
Deferred taxation 114 30,758

23,775 39,733

Reconciliation of rate of taxation
South African normal tax rate 28% 28%
Non-deductible expenses 18% (42%)
Non-taxable income (4%) 7%
Assessed losses on which no deferred tax asset was recognised 28% (33%)
Deferred tax written off during the year 31% -
Notional interest - 4%
Capital gains -* (6%)
Other (2%) -
Prior year under provision of taxes (6%) -*
Effective rate 98% (42%)

* Less than 1% 

**Prior year adjustment relate to an under provision in the prior year.

Tax losses amounting to R302.6 million (2020: R241.1 million) are available for set-off against future taxable income.
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27. LOSS PER SHARE 

2021 2020

ZAC ZAC

Basic and diluted loss per share (5,21) (51,08)
Headline and diluted headline loss per share (3,89) (49,42)
Net asset value per share 15,99 53,60
Net tangible asset per share* 4,90 36,66

* Net tangible asset per share = Net asset value less goodwill less intangible assets/Total number of shares in issue

27.1 LOSS/HEADLINE LOSS

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic loss per share for the Group 

are as follows: 

Loss used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operation (17,754) (147,107)
Loss used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operation - -
Headline loss attributable to ordinary shareholders from continuing operation (13,247) (142,311)
Headline loss attributable to ordinary shareholders from discontinued operation - -

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent used in calculating 

basic earnings per share (17,754) (147,107)
IAS 33 earnings
Less: IAS 36 impairment  9,889  4,743 
Derecognition of lease liability on sale of Vergelegen facility (5,813) -
Add: IAS 16 loss on the disposal of plant and equipment - Vergelegen  (2,375)  -   
Less: IAS 16 loss on the disposal of plant and equipment  713  74 
Tax effects of adjustments 2,093  (21)
Profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent used in calculating 
headline earnings per share  (13,247)  (142,311)

Number of shares in issue (‘000)  498,785  287,988 
Weighted numbers of shares (‘000)  340,543  287,988 

27.2 WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES AND DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Opening weighted number of shares 287,988    287,988
New issue of shares 52,555 -
Total shares in issue 340,543 287,988
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28. CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Loss before taxation 24,351 (94,108)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 62,843 66,906
Amortisation 3,989 4,563
Impairments 9,878 4,743
Loan impairments - 2,319
Derecognition of lease liability on sale of Vergelegen facility (5,813) -
Profit (loss) on sale of assets (2,375) -
Income from equity accounted investments (5,114) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary - 74
Finance costs 67,544 74,162
Investment income (886) (1,800)
Movement in provisions 4,416 330
Unrealised foreign currency gains (879) (83)
Other non-cash items - 334
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in inventories (2,196) (2,465)
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables (32,221) 1,004
(Decrease) / increase trade and other payables (11,785)  21,584

111,752 77,562

29. TAX PAID

Balance at the beginning of the year 581 3,023
Liabilities of a disposal group 784 -
Current tax charge 23,244 (8,975)
Effect of translation of foreign operations (628) (4,198)
Balance at the end of the year (16,147) (581)
Tax paid 7,834 (10,731) 
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(i) Financial instruments by category
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Figures in Rand Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12  -    107,218  -    107,218 
Trade and other receivables 11  -    47,020  -    47,020 
Investments in equity instruments* 8  2,956  -    -    2,956 
Other financial assets 8  -    23,800  -    23,800 
Total financial assets  2,955.60  178,039  -    180,995 

Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft 12  -    -    11,417  11,417 
Trade and other payables 14  -    -    36,578  36,578 
Borrowings 15  -    -    190,901  190,901 
Total financial liabilities  -    -    227,479  227,479 

2020
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12  -    59,777  -    59,777 
Trade and other receivables 11  -    30,733  -    30,733 
Investments in equity instruments 8  19,486  -    -    19,486 
Other financial assets 8 -  22,451  -    22,451 
Total financial assets 19,486 112,961  -   132,447

Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft 12  -    -    3,126 3,126
Trade and other payables 14  -    -    44,391 44,391
Borrowings 15  -    -    181,629 181,629
Total financial liabilities - - 229,146 229,146

* During the year Presmed increased their shareholding in Metwest by 19% resulting in a total holding of 38%. The investment in Metwest was 
previously carried at fair value. There was no profit or loss on derecognition of the investment. After acquiring the additional shares the group 
has significant influence over Metwest as defined in IAS28 and accordingly the investment is accounted for as an investment in an associate using 
the equity method. 

(ii) Risk management

Overview

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks from its use of financial assets and liabilities:

• Credit risk

• Liquidity risk

• Market risk

• Capital risk management

This note presents information regarding the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies 

and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures 

are included throughout these consolidated annual financial statements.
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Risk management framework

The board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The 

board has established the audit and risk committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk 

management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate 

risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 

regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through  its training and management 

standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees 

understand their roles and obligations.

The Group’s audit and risk committee oversee how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management 

policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the 

Group.

There have been no changes to the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and methods used to manage 

the risk from the prior year. For a list of material risks please visit the company’s website.

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and trade receivables. The Group deposits 

the surplus cash with major banks with high-quality credit standing and maintains an appropriate spread of  cash deposits 

between various financial institutions to limit the exposure to any one counterparty.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an 

ongoing basis. If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its 

financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set for patients without medical aid insurance. 

Credit guarantee insurance is not purchased. Credit risk relating to trade and other receivables is limited due to the pre- 

approval processes being in place within the medical aid schemes. Medical schemes are forced to maintain reserve levels. 

The policy for patients that do not have a medical scheme or an insurance paying company is to require an upfront payment 

instead. The Group does not have significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty. The Group considered 

forward looking information (current and future macro-economic factors) in the provision matrix. Because of the pre-

approval process being in place with medical aid schemes and an upfront payment arrangement for private funding patients 

COVID-19 did not have a significant impact on the quality of the debtors, the group debtors mainly consist of medical aids.

Management does not expect any significant loss from non-performance by medical aids where credit was granted during 

the financial year under review that has not been provided for.

The board has delegated the responsibility of managing the credit risk to the key management personnel of the Group, who 

are responsible for: 

• Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities;

• Reviewing and assessing credit risk;

• Monitoring the financial position of customers on an ongoing basis; and

• Formulating credit policies in relation to the subsidiary’s business and customer base.

Other financial assets

The company is exposed to credit risk in relation to loans with related and other parties. The risk is managed through formal 

procedures for granting of these loans. The recoverability of these loans is assessed annually. The credit quality of these 

loans is considered to be of a high credit standing and the risk has not increased since inception.
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Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

2021 2020

Notes R’000 R’000

Trade and other receivables 12  47,020  30,733 
Cash and cash equivalents 13  107,218  59,777 
Other financial assets 9  23,800  22,451 

 178,039  112,961 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial  

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to 

ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both  normal and 

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 

60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that 

cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

An analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity Groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting 

date to contractual maturity date is as follows, based on undiscounted cash flows:

Less than
 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total

Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 15  36,578  -    -    36,578 
Borrowings 16  (56,577)  (184,292)  -    (240,869)
Lease liabilities 17  (52,103)  (226,027)  (444,518)  (722,647)
Bank overdraft 13  -    -    -    -   

 (72,102)  (410,318)  (444,518)  (926,938)

2020
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 15  (44,391)  -    -    (44,391)
Borrowings 16  (51,110)  (189,807)  -    (240,917)
Lease liabilities 17  (53,799)  (184,062)  (682,052)  (919,913)
Bank overdraft 13  (3,126)  -    -    (3,126)

 (152,426)  (373,869)  (682,052)  (939,882)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates and credit spreads will 

affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 

to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate owing to 

changes in the market interest rates. The fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial  instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The Group assumes exposure to the effects  of fluctuations in the 

prevailing levels of market interest rates on both fair value and cash flow risks. 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

As at 30 June 2021, if the interest rate on variable rate assets and liabilities held at amortised cost had increased or decreased 

by 1,00% with all other variables held constant, the impact in profit and loss would have been as set out in the table below:

2021 2020

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

 Pre-tax  Post-tax  Pre-tax  Post-tax 

Increase 7,017 5,053 (7,705) (5,548)
Decrease (7,017) (5,053) (7,705) (5,548)

There is no interest risk on equity items.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in South Africa and in Australia and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency 

exposure with respect to the Australian dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets 

and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency 

that is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, the net financial assets of which are exposed to foreign currency 

translation risk. The exchange rates are not subjected to external regulatory requirements. This will have no effect on the 

post-tax profit as the effect of the translation is recognised directly in the foreign currency translation reserve. The impact 

analysis if the exchange rate changes by 10,00% is as follows:

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Loss before tax
Weakened 8,448 1,871
Strengthened (8,448) (1,871)

Net financial assets of foreign operations
Weakened  21,828 (21,789)
Strengthened  (21,828) 21,789

Closing Average

South Africa 2021 2020 2021 2020

Australian dollar (AUD) 10,7778 11,9615 11,4873 10,4887
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Capital risk

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, in order that it 

can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and an adequate return to shareholders by pricing 

products and services adequately with a moderate level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and adjusts it considering 

changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 

structure, the Group may issue dividends to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital based on interest-bearing debt less cash to total equity ratio.

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Interest-bearing debt less cash 85,362 138,175
Total equity 179,742 154,358
Interest-bearing debt less cash to equity ratio 47% 90%

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of total debt to total equity ratio – gearing 

percentage.
Total debt 192,580 181,629
Total equity 179,741 154,358
Debt to equity ratio 107% 118%

The target debt to equity ratio for the Group is 60% (2020: 60%). There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital 

management during the year.

Debt Covenant triggers

In South Africa, a loan of R98m from Eenhede is due for payment in full on the 30th of April 2022, per the agreement 

the loan will not payable if the liquidity status of the company does not allow. Based on the current liquidity status of the 

company it is unlikely that the loan will be settled on the 30th of April 2022. The group does not have debt covenants that 

need to be complied to.

31. RELATED PARTIES

Relationships

Refer to note 33 for the Group structure. 

Hereward Proprietary Limited and Kingham Proprietary Limited “Metwest”

Nature of a relationship - Associate

Key management personnel

The directors are defined as key senior management. Details of the directors’ emoluments, shareholding and share options 

are disclosed in notes 19, 32 and 35.
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Transactions with key management personnel

Eenhede Konsultante Proprietary Limited “Eenhede”

CA Grillenberger, FA Hoogstraten and CJPG van Zyl are directors of the above company. Eenhede Konsultante Proprietary 

Limited is the Majority shareholder in Advanced.

Lebella Holdings Proprietary Limited “Lebella”

Dr WT Mthembu is a director of the above company.

New Medgate Properties Proprietary Limited ‘’NMP’’

CA Grillenberger is a director of the above company.

Miclavi Properties 33 Proprietary Limited “Miclavi’’

CA Grillenberger is a director of the above company.

PresMed Witbank Proprietary Limited “PMWB’’

CA Grillenberger is a director of the above company

Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein)

Ysbrand Visser, a director of PMA is a director of this company.

Ivan Kassel via Davilar Super Fund

I Kassel is a director of the above company

Related party balances

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Trade and other payables  -   
NMP  (48)  (28)
PWMP  -    (1)
Loans receivable/(payable)  -   
Eenhede  (124,645)  (119,610)
Lebella 2,319 2,319
CA & JL Grillenberger  -    (4,785)
NMP  (1,261)  (1,448)
Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein)  (3,150)  (5,121)
Ivan Kassel via Davilar Super Fund  (2,694)  (4,486)
Loans to Management (Australia Operations)  5,038  5,590 

Related party transactions

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Interest received  -   
Lebella  -    (226)
Interest paid  -   
Eenhede  2,767  2,408 
NMP  96  139 
Rental received
Lebella  -    906 
Rental paid
NMP  1,628  1,486 
Miclavi  135  464 
PWMP  -    7 
Dividends received
Metwest  1,881  367 
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32. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS
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R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2021
Non-executive
PJ Jaffe  1,175 - - -  1,175 -  1,175 
Dr WT Mthembu 34 - - - 34 - 34
FA van Hoogstraten 49 - - - 49 - 49
Dr J Oelofse 31 - - - 31 - 31
YJ Visser 41 - - - 41 - 41
CJPG van Zyl 44 - - - 44 - 44
Dr K Legodi 31 - - - 31 - 31
CA Grillenberger 14 - - - 14 - 14
Executive
MC Resnik - 6,200 2,277 - 8,477 4,241 12,718
G van Emmenis - 2,868 - - 2,868 - 2,868
S Chonco - 1,417 - - 1,417 - 1,417
D Goss-Ross - 1,693 - - 1,693 - 1,693

1,419 12,178 2,277 - 15 874 4,241 20,115
2020
Non-executive
PJ Jaffe 301 - - - 301 - 301
Dr WT Mthembu 91 - - - 91 - 91
FA van Hoogstraten 123 - - - 123 - 123
Dr J Oelofse 85 - - - 85 - 85
YJ Visser 91 - - - 91 - 91
CJPG van Zyl 91 - - - 91 - 91
Dr K Legodi 49 - - - 49 - 49
CA Grillenberger 151 - - - 151 - 151
Executive
MC Resnik - 5,297 2,183 - 7,480 3,408 10,888
CP Snyman - 860 116 - 976 - 976
G van Emmenis - 3,040 - - 3,040 - 3,040
CA Grillenberger - - - - - 110 110
S Chonco 1 - 622 - - 622 - 622
D Goss-Ross - 1,478 - 39 1,517 - 1,517

982 11,297 2,299 39 14,616 3,518 18,135
 
* Fees include reimbursive payment

1 S Chonco was not employed for a full year.

Executive directors took a temporary salary cuts in response to cash flow pressures caused by COVID–19 during the 2021 financial year

Non-executive directors forfeited their fees for part of the year due to cash flow pressures that were caused by COVID-19
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Details of service contracts

All executive directors have normal employment contracts. 

Retainer Attendance*

2021 2021

R’000 R’000

FA van Hoogstraten 90,735 pa 5,671
CJPG van Zyl 90,735 pa 5,671
Dr WT Mthembu 90,735 pa 5,671
Dr J Oelofse 90,735 pa 5,671
YJ Visser 90,735 pa 5,671
CA Grillenberger 90,735 pa 8,166
Dr K Legodi 90,735 pa 5,671

Retainer Attendance*

2020 2020

R’000 R’000

FA van Hoogstraten 90,735 pa 5,671
CJPG van Zyl 90,735 pa 5,671
Dr WT Mthembu 90,735 pa 5,671
Dr J Oelofse 90,735 pa 5,671
YJ Visser 90,735 pa 5,671
CA Grillenberger 136,107 pa 8,166
Dr K Legodi 90,735 pa 5,671

* Per meeting attended.
MC Resnik is entitled to a profit participation plan considering the key strategic objectives set out for the role.  
At each annual general meeting, one third of non-executive directors shall be subject to rotation.
Phil Jaffe is not on a retainer, he gets paid based on the services rendered. PMA pay Phil Jaffe an agreed monthly amount of $8,580/month + GST.
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33. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Country of 
incorporation Held by

2021 2020

R’000 R’000

Advanced De La Vie Day Hospital Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 60,00% 60,00%
Advanced De La Vie Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 89,00% 89,00%
Advanced Durbanville Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 67,00% 67,00%
Advanced Durbanville Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 60,00% 60,00%
Advanced East Rand Day Hospital Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 56,60% 56,60%
Advanced East Rand Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 77,00% 77,00%
Advanced Groenkloof Day Hospital Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 60,00% 60,00%
Advanced Groenkloof Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 65,00% 65,00%
Advanced Harbour Bay Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 80,81% 80,81%
Advanced Harbour Bay Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 51,00% 51,00%
My Q Theatre Mx Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 100,00% 100,00%
AdvancedSouth Africa Proprietary Limited South Africa 1 100,00% 100,00%
Advanced Knysna Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 92,08% 92,08%
Advanced Knysna Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 50,12% 50,12%
Advanced Medgate Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 99,00% 99,00%
Advanced Panorama Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 90,00% 90,00%
Advanced Panorama Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 60,00% 60,00%
Advanced Vergelegen Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 96,00% 96,00%
Advanced Vergelegen Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 60,00% 60,00%
Advanced Worcester Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 97,00% 97,00%
Advanced Worcester Surgical Centre Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 60,00% 60,00%
Central Coast Day Hospital Proprietary Limited Australia 3 55,56% 55,56%
Chatswood Private Hospital Proprietary Limited Australia 3 69,56% 67,70%
eMalahleni Day Hospital Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 100,00% 100,00%
eMalahleni Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 100,00% 100,00%
Epping Surgery Centre Proprietary Limited Australia 3 54,04% 54,04%
Madison Day Surgery Proprietary Limited Australia 3 60,53% 60,53%
Medgate Day Hospital Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 60,00% 60,00%
Presmed Australia Proprietary Limited Australia 1 61,41% 61,41%
Presmed Unit Trust Australia 4 100,00% 100,00%
Soweto Day Hospital Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 51.00% 51,00%
Soweto Doctors Investment Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 100,00% 100,00%
Tswelelopholo Proprietary Limited South Africa 2 100,00% 100,00%

1 – Advanced
2 – AdvancedSouth Africa Proprietary Limited
3 – Presmed Australia Property Limited
4 – Chatswood Private Hospital Proprietary Limited

Financial assistance of R279 million was granted to Advanced Health South Africa and its subsidiaries as at the 30 June 2021.



ANNUAL REPORT 202188

34. SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Chatswood 
Private Hospital 

Central Coast  
Day Hospital

Epping  
Surgery Centre

Madison  
Day Surgery

Australia 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Non-controlling interest (“NCI”) 
percentage 30.44% 30.30% 44.44% 44.44% 45.96% 45.96% 39.47% 39.47%
Principal place of business Australia Australia Australia Australia Australia Australia Australia Australia
Total assets  297,908  345,501  59,319  30,077  41,770  40,385  41,342  51,578 
Non-current assets  264,205  312,017  21,627  6,042  21,820  22,488  30,387  41,164 
Current assets  33,703  33,484  37,692  24,035  19,950  17,896  10,956  10,414 
Total liabilities (207,120) (241,003) (31,757) (10,836) (7,313) (9,752) (32,558) (37,060) 
Non-current liabilities (180,746) (199,415) (14,340) (672 ) (113) (1,904) (26,114) (30,283) 
Current liabilities (26,375) (41,588) (17,417) (10,163) (7,200) (7,848) (6,445) (6,777)
Net assets  90,788  104,498  27,561  19,242  34,457  30,633  8,784  14,518 
Carrying amount of material  
NCI interests  27,636  31,663  12,248  8,552  15,836  14,102  3,467  3,348 

Revenue  224,914  148,952  129,712  79,779  53,738  41,619  42,783  28,880 
Profit/(loss) after tax  30,247  9,713  37,982  10,879  10,974  4,244  11,094  2,997 
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI  9,207  2,943  16,879  4,835  5,044  1,971  4,379  1,290 
Dividends paid to NCI  -    -    8,161  9,153  -    -    2,494  1,035 
Dividends paid (cents per share)  -    -    13.98  14.63  -    -    7.82  34.10 
Contribution to net cash flow 
movement for the year  10,311 -8,902  34,770 -914  7,110  3,863  6,999  2,627 

Advanced Harbour Bay 
Surgical Centre 

Advanced Knysna 
Surgical Centre 

Advanced Groenkloof 
Day Hospital 

South Africa 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Non-controlling interest (“NCI”) 
percentage 25.00% 25.00% 13.14% 13.14% 14.00% 14.00%
Principal place of business South Africa South Africa South Africa South Africa South Africa South Africa
Total assets  17,846  55,532  20,658  50,487  60,431  86,789 
Non-current assets  15,280  51,478  17,676  48,366  56,234  83,118 
Current assets  2,566  4,054  2,982  2,121  4,197  3,671 
Total liabilities (30,728) (49,817) (20,267) (65,695) (45,269) (71,773)
Non-current liabilities (22,866) (46,413) (15,387) (63,369) (40,236) (67,918)
Current liabilities (7,862) (3,405) (4,880) (2,326) (5,033) (3,854)
Net assets (12,882)  5,715  391 (15,207)  15,162  15,017 
Carrying amount of material  
NCI interests (3,220)  1,429  51 (1,998)  2,123  2,102 

Revenue  11,291  2,142  16,456  14,982  26,091  20,809 
Profit/(loss) after tax (11,157) (90) (5,745) (5,787) (4,654) (9,033)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI (2,789) (23) (755) (760) (652) (1,265)
Dividends paid to NCI  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Dividends paid (cents per share)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Contribution to net cash flow 
movement for the year (3,004) (3,794) (235) (2,726)  1,350 (1,821)

In the prior year only direct interest in the subsidiary was disclosed in this note. In the current year this was corrected to reflect the net investment 
of the Group which more accurately reflect the NCI of the Group. This has not impacted the statement of financial position, statement of changes in 
equity and the statement of profit or loss.

* Less than 1,000
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35. DIRECTOR SHAREHOLDING
The direct and indirect beneficial interest in shares held by all the directors below:

Direct 
beneficial

Indirect 
beneficial Total Percentage

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

As at 30 June 2021 
FA van Hoogstraten - 128 128 0.03%
CA Grillenberger - 350,085 350,085 70.19%
MC Resnik - 500 500 0.10%
CJPG van Zyl 1,509 - 1,509 0.30%
Dr WT Mthembu 30 - 30 0.01%
Dr J Oelofse - 700 700 0.14%
Total financial assets 1,539 351,413 352,951 70.76%

As at 30 June 2020
FA van Hoogstraten - 65 65 0,02%
CA Grillenberger - 171,781 171,781 59,65%
MC Resnik - 325 325 0,11%
CJPG van Zyl 1,009 - 1,009 0,35%
Dr WT Mthembu 30 - 30 0,01%
Dr J Oelofse - 700 700 0,24%
Total financial assets 1,039 172,871 173,909 60,39%

Since year end to date of signature of the annual report, no directors have made changes to their shareholding.  

36. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On the 7th July 2021, Presmed Australia Pty Limited’s acquired a 20% interest in the Devonport Eye Hospital Pty Ltd and 

Clearvis Pty Ltd for a total combined transaction consideration consideration of AUD 1 408 116. 

An additional transaction consideration amount will be calculated based on the adjusted EBITDA of Devonport Eye Hospital 

Pty Ltd and Clearvis Pty Ltd, for the year ending 30 June 2021 and will be determined within three months after the 30 June 

2021 financial accounts are finalised. The additional transaction consideration amount is not expected to exceed the initial 

payment amount.

37. GOING CONCERN - MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY
Advanced Health draws attention that at 30 June 2021, the Group had accumulated losses of R255.3 million  

(2020: R237.2 million) after a profit of R0.6million (2020: loss of R133.8 million). The group’s current ratio is 1:1  

(2020: 0.8:1). The South African Operations within the group however continued to incur significant losses (R47.7 million) 

and had negative cashflows from operations taking into account lease payments. The current liabilities of the South African 

Operations exceed current assets by R3.55 million.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 

This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and the realisation of assets and settlement of 

liabilities, contingent liabilities and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.     

     

The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is dependent on the continuous improvement of operations, 

generation of positive cash flows and the ability of management to manage COVID-19 effects.     

  

Managements’ plan to improve results include:         

1. Disposal of minority shareholding in facilities to doctor’s consortiums to develop long term strategic partnerships with 

specialists.

2. Ensuring reasonable tariff increases from Medical Schemes during annual tariff increase negotiations.

3. Marketing campaigns to align specialists, patients, medical schemes and facilities

4. Focussed recruitment campaigns for key specialists at strategic facilities, including those who used our facilities during 

COVID lockdowns.

5. Capital expenditure on gynaecologist and orthopaedic equipment at selected facilities.
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38. COMPARITIVE FIGURES

As previously 
disclosed Reclassified Restated

Statement of Cash Flow
In the current year finance cost have been reclassified 

from operating activities to financing activities to correctly 

reflect the nature thereof.

The effect of this reclassification was as follows:

Finance costs included under operating activities  9,967 (9,967)  -   
Finance costs included under financing activities  -    9,967  9,967 

Statement of Financial Position
Property, plant and equipment and Right of use assets were 

previously shown separately in the annual report, but have 

been grouped together in the current year to better reflect 

the nature of the items.

The effect of this reclassification was as follows:

Property, plant and equipment  187,482  441,226  628,708 
Right of use assets  441,226 -441,226  -   
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SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS

SHAREHOLDER SPREAD

Number of 
shareholders

% of total 
shareholding

Number of 
shares

% of shares 
in issue

1- 5,000 SHARES 8,055 88,08% 3,248,438 0,65%
5,001 – 20,000 shares 575 6,29% 6,724,025 1,35%
20,001 – 100,000 shares 357 3,90% 17,434,807 3,50%
100,001 – 1,000,000 shares 139 1,52% 41,043,272 8,23%
1,000,001 shares and over 19 0,21% 430,334,038 86,28%

9,145 100,00% 498,784,580 100,00%

SHAREHOLDERS WITH MORE THAN 5% OF THE TOTAL  

ISSUED STATED CAPITAL

Shareholder
Number of 

shares
% of shares 

in issue

Eenhede Konsultante Proprietary Limited 287,164,180 57,57%
PresMedical Witbank Proprietary Limited 48,838,555 9,79%

336,002,735 67,36%

SHAREHOLDER TYPE

Shareholder
Number of 

shares
% of shares 

in issue

Public 159,348,392 31,91%
Non-public 339,636,188 68,09%

498,784,580 100,00%

SHAREHOLDER DIARY

AGM       12 November 2021

Interim period      31 December 2021

Expected reporting date for interim results   25 February 2022

Financial year-end     30 June 2022

Financial statements – expected publication date  30 August 2022

AGM – expected      11 November 2022
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the 2021 AGM of the company will be held on Friday, 12 November 2021 at 10:00 to consider and, 

if deemed fit, pass the ordinary and special resolutions as set out below.

Due to the impact of Covid-19 the Board has, in the circumstances, determined that it is preferable that the AGM be held 

by way of electronic participation instead of in person. Accordingly, the AGM will only be accessible through electronic 

communication.

The AGM will be held virtually using Zoom with the transfer secretaries, JSE Investor Services acting as scrutineers for the 

purpose of the meeting.

Shareholders who wish to participate and/or vote at the AGM are required to contact JSE Investor Services on  meetfax@

jseinvestorservices.co.za or on +27 86 154 6572 as soon as possible, but in any event by no later than 10H00 on Wednesday, 

10 November 2021 to obtain the link to the meeting. Shareholders wishing to vote will be assisted by JSE Investor Services 

where required and only through means of submitting their vote before the due date on the appropriate voting form or 

relevant proxy form issued.

Notes

An ordinary resolution requires the support of more than 50% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution by shareholders 

present or represented by proxy at the AGM and entitled to exercise voting rights on the resolution, unless stated otherwise.

A special resolution requires the support of 75% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution by shareholders present or 

represented by proxy at the AGM and entitled to exercise voting rights on the resolution.

The above will be the required voting rights unless mentioned otherwise in the resolution notice.

Agenda

1. Presentation and consideration of the group annual financial statements of Advanced, including the reports of the 

directors, the audit and risk committee and the corporate governance report for the year ended 30 June 2021. The 

complete annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 and the above reports are available for inspection 

at the registered office of Building 3, Walker Creek Office Park, 90 Florence Ribeiro Avenue, Muckleneuk, Pretoria and 

on the company website www.advancedhealth.co.za; and

2. To consider and, if deemed fit, approve, with or without modification, the following ordinary and special resolutions:

Ordinary resolutions

Ordinary resolution 1: Rotation, appointment and reappointment of directors

RESOLVED THAT the reappointment of the following directors, who retire by rotation in accordance with the provisions of 

the company’s MOI, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, which is to be authorised and confirmed by separate 

resolution in respect of each reappointment:

• Ordinary resolution 1.1. RESOLVED THAT Dr KE Legodi is reappointed as a non-executive director of the company.

• Ordinary resolution 1.2. RESOLVED THAT Dr J Oelofse is reappointed as a non-executive director of the company.

• Ordinary resolution 1.3. RESOLVED THAT Mr YJ Visser is reappointed as a non-executive director of the company.

• Ordinary resolution 1.4. RESOLVED THAT Mr FA van Hoogstraten is reappointed as a non-executive director of the 

company. 

• Brief CVs of the directors are provided on pages 7 to 10 of the integrated annual report.
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Ordinary resolution 2: Reappointment of independent external auditor

RESOLVED THAT the reappointment of the auditor, Mazars, as nominated by the company’s audit and risk committee, 

as the independent auditor of the company and the group, and Gerhard de Beer as the designated audit partner, for the 

financial year ending 30 June 2022, be approved.

Ordinary resolution 3: Appointment of chairman, reappointment and appointment to the audit and risk committee

RESOLVED THAT the following directors of the company, by separate resolution, be and are hereby elected as members 

of the company’s audit and risk committee until the conclusion of the next AGM, being appointed in accordance with the 

Companies Act.

• Ordinary resolution 3.1: RESOLVED THAT Mr CJPG van Zyl is elected as a member and chairman of the audit and risk 

committee of the company.

• Ordinary resolution 3.2: RESOLVED THAT Mr P Jaffe is elected as a member of the audit and risk committee of the 

company.

• Ordinary resolution 3.3: RESOLVED THAT Mr YJ Visser is elected as a member of the audit and risk committee of the 

company subject to the passing of ordinary resolution 1.3.

• Ordinary resolution 3.4: RESOLVED THAT Mr FA van Hoogstraten is elected as a member of the audit and risk committee 

of the company subject to passing of ordinary resolution 1.4

Brief CVs of the directors are provided on pages 7 to 10 of the integrated annual report.

Ordinary resolution 4: Approval of the company’s remuneration policy

RESOLVED THAT, as a non-binding advisory vote, the company’s remuneration policy as set out in the remuneration report 

on page 19 of the integrated report be and is hereby confirmed.

Ordinary resolution 5: Approval of the company’s remuneration implementation report

RESOLVED THAT, as a non-binding advisory vote, the company’s remuneration implementation report as set out in the 

remuneration report on page 19 of the integrated report be and is hereby confirmed.

Ordinary resolution 6: General power and authority to allot and issue shares for cash

RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the JSE Listings Requirements and the company’s MOI, 

as a general authority valid until the next AGM of the company and provided that it shall not extend past 15 months from 

the date of this AGM, the authorised but unissued ordinary shares of the company be and are hereby placed under the 

control of the directors who are hereby authorised to allot, issue, grant options over or otherwise deal with or dispose of 

these shares to such persons at such times and on such terms and conditions and for such consideration whether payable 

in cash or otherwise, as the directors may think fit, provided that:

• the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, 

must be limited to such equity securities or rights that are convertible into a class already in issue;

• this authority shall not endure beyond the next AGM of the company nor shall it endure beyond 15 months from the date 

of this meeting;

• the shares must be issued only to public shareholders (as defined in the Listings Requirements) and not to related 

parties (as defined in the JSE Listings Requirements);

• upon any issue of shares which, together with prior issues during any financial year, will constitute 5% or more of the 

number of shares of the class in issue, the company shall by way of an announcement on SENS, give full details thereof;

• the number of ordinary shares issued for cash shall not, in the current financial year, in aggregate, exceed 50% 

(249,392,290 shares) of the company’s issued ordinary shares (including securities which are compulsorily convertible 

into shares of that class);

• any equity securities issued under the authority during the period contemplated in paragraph 5.50(b) must be deducted 

from such number above;

• in the event of a subdivision or consolidation of issued equity securities during the period contemplated above, the 

existing authority must be adjusted accordingly to represent the same allocation ratio; and

• the maximum discount at which shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of the company’s 

shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is determined or agreed by the directors 

of the applicant.

Note: In order for this ordinary resolution number 6 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the voting rights exercised 

by shareholders present in person or by proxy must be exercised in favour thereof.
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Ordinary resolution 7: Place the authorised but unissued shares under the control of the directors

RESOLVED THAT the authorised but unissued shares in the capital of the company be and are hereby placed under the 

control and authority of the directors of the company and that the directors of the company be and are hereby authorised 

and empowered to allot, issue and otherwise dispose of such shares to such person or persons on which terms and 

conditions and at such times as the directors of the company may from time to time and in their discretion deem fit, subject 

to the provisions of the Companies Act, the MOI of the company, and the JSE Listings Requirements, where applicable.  

Such authority will remain in force until the company’s next AGM.

 

Ordinary resolution 8: Authority of directors and company secretary

RESOLVED THAT any director or the company secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such things and sign all such 

documentation as are necessary to give effect to the ordinary and special resolutions set out in the notice, hereby ratifying 

and confirming all such things already done and documentation already signed.

Special resolutions

Special resolution 1: Approval of non-executive directors’ fees

RESOLVED THAT the fees payable to non-executive directors of the company, members and chairman of board committees 

ending at the date of the next AGM, as set out below, be approved.

Chairman
Lead  

Independent Members

R R R

Board 75,000pa 70,000pa 65,000pa
Audit and Risk Committee 26,000pa - 20,000pa
Social and Ethics Committee 12,000pa - 10,000pa
Remuneration and Nominations Committee 12,000pa - 10,000pa

 Ad hoc/special meetings to be remunerated as follows:

• Chairman at R1,500 per hour

• Members at R1,250 per hour

The board reserves the right not to charge fees if they are not satisfied that the company’s performance is up to their 

expectation.

Special resolution 2: Financial assistance

RESOLVED THAT, to the extent required by the Companies Act, the board of the company may, subject to compliance with 

requirements of the company’s MOI, the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements, each as presently constituted 

and as amended from time to time, authorise the company to provide direct or indirect financial assistance in terms of 

section 45 of the Companies Act by way of loans, guarantees, the provisions of security or otherwise, to any of its present 

or future subsidiaries and/or any other company or corporation that is or becomes related or inter-related (as defined in the 

Companies Act) to the company for any purpose or in connection with any matter, such authority to endure until the next 

AGM of the company.

Notice in terms of section 45(5) of the Companies Act in respect of special resolution number 2.

Notice is hereby given to shareholders of the company in terms of section 45(5) of the Companies Act of a resolution 

adopted by the board authorising the company to provide such direct or indirect financial assistance as specified in the 

special resolution above:

a. by the time that this notice of AGM is delivered to shareholders of the company, the board will have adopted a resolution 

(“section 45 board resolution”) authorising the company to provide, at any time and from time to time during the period of 

two years commencing on the date on which the special resolution is adopted, any direct or indirect financial assistance as 

contemplated in section 45 of the Companies Act to any one or more related or interrelated companies or corporations of 

the company and/or to any one or more members of any such related or interrelated company or corporation and/or to any 

one or more persons related to any such company or corporation;

b. the section 45 board resolution will be effective only if and to the extent that the special resolution under the heading 

“special resolution number 2” is adopted by the shareholders of the company, and the provision of any such direct or 
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indirect financial assistance by the company, pursuant to such resolution, will always be subject to the board being 

satisfied that: 

i. immediately after providing such financial assistance, the company will satisfy the solvency and liquidity test as 

referred to in section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, and that

ii. the terms under which such financial assistance is to be given are fair and reasonable to the company as referred 

to in section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act; and

c. in as much as the section 45 board resolution contemplates that such financial assistance will in the aggregate exceed 

one tenth of 1% of the company’s net worth at the date of adoption of such resolution, the company hereby provides 

notice of the section 45 board resolution to shareholders of the company.

By order of the board,

M Stoltz
Company secretary 

8 October 2021

JSE Investor Services

13th Floor, 19 Ameshoff Street

Braamfontein

(PO Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000)
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PROXY FORM

For use by the holders of the company’s certificated linked units and/or dematerialised linked units held through a central 

securities depository participant or broker who have selected “own name” registration at the 2021 AGM of members of the 

company to be held via Zoom on Friday, 12 November 2021 at 10:00.

I/We (name in block letters) 

______________________________________________________________________________________________

of ____________________________________________________________________________________________

being the holder of ___________________________________________________ ordinary shares of the company, 

hereby appoint: _________________________________________________________________________________

or failing him/her, the chairman of the AGM.

as my/our proxy to act for me/us on my/our behalf at the AGM or any adjournment thereof, which will be held for purposes 

of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions to be proposed 

thereat as detailed in the notice of AGM; and to vote for or against such resolutions and/or abstain from voting for or against 

the resolutions in respect of the ordinary shares in my/our name in accordance with the following instructions:

For Against Abstain
Ordinary resolution 1.1 Reappointment of Dr KE Legodi as a non-executive director
Ordinary resolution 1.2 Reappointment of Dr J Oelofse as a non-executive director
Ordinary resolution 1.3 Reappointment of Mr YJ Visser as a non-executive director

Ordinary resolution 1.4
Reappointment of Mr FA van Hoogstraten as a non-executive 
director

Ordinary resolution 2 Reappointment of external auditors

Ordinary resolution 3.1
Appointment of Mr CJPG van Zyl as member and chairman of 
the audit and risk committee 

Ordinary resolution 3.2
Appointment of Mr PJ Jaffe as member of the audit and risk 
committee 

Ordinary resolution 3.3
Appointment of Mr YJ Visser as member of the audit and risk 
committee subject to the passing of ordinary resolution 1.3

Ordinary resolution 3.4
Appointment of Mr FA van Hoogstraten as member of the audit 
and risk committee of the company subject to the passing of 
ordinary resolution 1.4

Ordinary resolution 4 Approval of the company’s remuneration policy
Ordinary resolution 5 Approval of the company’s remuneration implementation report
Ordinary resolution 6 General power and authority to allot and issue shares for cash

Ordinary resolution 7
Place the authorised but unissued shares under the control of 
the directors

Ordinary resolution 8 Authority of directors and company secretary

Special resolution 1 Approval of non-executive directors’ fees
Special resolution 2 Financial assistance

Signed at ________________________________________________ on _____________________ 2021

Signature __________________________________________

  

Advanced Health Limited 
(Incorporated in South Africa) 
(Registration number:  2013/059246/06) 
JSE code: AVL  
ISIN: ZAE000189049
(“Advanced” or “the company”)
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NOTES

1. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory(ies).

2. Every shareholder present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the AGM of the company shall, on a show of hands, 

have one vote only, irrespective of the number of shares such shareholder holds.  In the event of a poll, every shareholder 

shall be entitled to that proportion of the total votes in the company which the aggregate amount of the nominal value of the 

shares held by such shareholder bears to the aggregate amount of the nominal value of all the shares issued by the company. 

 

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote in 

his/her stead. A proxy need not be a registered shareholder of the company.

3. A shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the 

space/s provided overleaf, with or without deleting “the chairperson of the AGM”, but any such deletion must be initialled 

by the shareholder. Should the space/s be left blank, the proxy will be exercised by the chairperson of the AGM. The person 

whose name appears first on the form of proxy and who is present at the AGM will be entitled to act.

4. A shareholder’s voting instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of an “X”, or the number of votes which 

that shareholder wishes to exercise, in the appropriate spaces provided overleaf. Failure to do so will be deemed to authorise 

the proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the AGM as he/she thinks fit in respect of all the shareholder’s exercisable 

votes. A shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by him/her or by his/her proxy, but the 

total number of votes cast, or those in respect of which abstention is recorded, may not exceed the total number of votes 

exercisable by the shareholder or by his/her proxy.

5. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are 

produced or have been registered by the transfer secretaries of the company.

6. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must 

be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the transfer secretaries or waived by the chairperson of the 

AGM.

7. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the AGM and 

speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such shareholder wish 

to do so.

8. The appointment of a proxy in terms of this form of proxy is revocable in terms of the provisions of section 58(4)(c) read 

with section 58(5) of the Companies Act, and accordingly a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by cancelling it 

in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy, and delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the 

proxy and to the company.

9. The chairperson of the AGM may accept any form of proxy which is completed other than in accordance with these 

instructions provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a shareholder wishes to vote.

To be valid, the completed forms of proxy must be lodged with the transfer secretaries of the company, Link:

Hand deliveries to:     E-mail address:  meetfax@jseinvestorservices.co.za 

13th Floor

19 Ameshoff Street

Braamfontein

To be received by no later than 10:00 on Wednesday, 10 November 2021.
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Summary of rights established by section 58 of the Companies Act, as required in terms of 

subsection 58(8)(b)(i):

1. A shareholder may at any time appoint any individual, including a non-shareholder of the company, as a proxy to participate 

in, speak and vote at a shareholders’ meeting on his or her behalf (section 58(1)(a)), or to give or withhold consent on behalf 

of the shareholder to a decision in terms of section 60 (shareholders acting other than at a meeting) (section 58(1)(b)).

2. A proxy appointment must be in writing, dated and signed by the shareholder and remains valid for one year after the date 

on which it was signed or any longer or shorter period expressly set out in the appointment, unless it is revoked in terms of 

paragraph 6.3 or expires earlier in terms of paragraph 10.4 below (section 58(2)).

3. A shareholder may appoint two or more persons concurrently as proxies and may appoint more than one proxy to exercise 

voting rights attached to different securities held by the shareholder (section 58(3)(a)).

4. A proxy may delegate his or her authority to act on behalf of the shareholder to another person, subject to any restrictions 

set out in the instrument appointing the proxy (proxy instrument) (section 58(3)(b)).

5. A copy of the proxy instrument must be delivered to the company, or to any other person acting on behalf of the company, 

before the proxy exercises any rights of the shareholder at a shareholder’s meeting (section 58(3)(c)) and in terms of the 

MOI of the company at least 48 hours before the meeting commences.

6. Irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy:

6.1 the appointment is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder chooses to act directly and in 

person in the exercise of any rights as a shareholder (section 58(4)(a));

6.2 the appointment is revocable unless the proxy appointment expressly states otherwise (section 58(4)(b)); and

6.3 if the appointment is revocable, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by cancelling it in writing or by 

making a later, inconsistent appointment of a proxy, and delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy 

and to the company (section 58(4)(c)).

7. The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf 

of the shareholder as of the later of the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any, or the date on which the revocation 

instrument was delivered as contemplated in paragraph 6.3 above (section 58(5)).

8. If the proxy instrument has been delivered to a company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any notice required 

by the Companies Act or the company’s MOI to be delivered by the company to the shareholder must be delivered by the 

company to the shareholder (section 58(6)(a)), or the proxy or proxies, if the shareholder has directed the company to so in 

writing and paid any reasonable fee charged by the company for doing so (section 58(6)(b)).

9. A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting rights of the shareholder without redirection, except to 

the extent that the MOI or proxy instrument provides otherwise (section 58(7)).

10. If a company issues an invitation to shareholders to appoint one or more persons named by the company as a proxy, or 

supplies a form of proxy instrument:

10.1 the invitation must be sent to every shareholder entitled to notice of the meeting at which the proxy is intended to be 

exercised (section 58(8)(a));

10.2 the invitation or form of proxy instrument supplied by the company must:

10.2.1 bear a reasonable prominent summary of the rights established in section 58 of the Companies Act (section 

58(8)(b)(i));

10.2.2 contain adequate blank space, immediately preceding the name(s) of any person(s) named in it, to enable a 

shareholder to write the name, and if desired, an alternative name of proxy chosen by the shareholder (section 

58(8)(b)(ii)); and

10.2.3 provide adequate space for the shareholder to indicate whether the appointment proxy is to vote in favour of or 

against any resolution(s) to be put at the meeting, or is to abstain from voting (section 58(8)(b)(iii)).

10.3 The company must not require that the proxy appointment be made irrevocable (section 58(8)(c)); and

10.4 The proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the meeting at which it was intended to be used, subject to 

paragraph 7 above (section 58(8)(d)).
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INVITATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

All registered shareholders are cordially invited to attend the shareholders’ meeting. The meeting will be held via Zoom 

on 12 November 2021 directly after the AGM. Shareholders can join the meeting by contacting the company secretary on  

ml@advancedhealth.co.za to request the link by no later than 10:00 on Wednesday, 10 November 2021.

At the meeting, the CEO will address all shareholders on the investment operations of Advanced and will also afford 

shareholders the opportunity to ask any questions they may have. All shareholders are encouraged to be present.

In order to assist with catering and logistics, the shareholders intending to attend the meeting are requested to notify the 

secretary by completing the attached form. Your assistance is greatly appreciated. The notice may be returned by any of 

the following means:

1. Email:   meetfax@jseinvestorservices.co.za

2. Fax:  086 674 4381

3. Hand deliveries: 13th Floor, 19 Ameshoff Street, Braamfontein

4. Mail:  Postnet Suite 668, Private Bag X1, The Willows, 0041

M Stoltz
Company Secretary

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO BE PRESENT AT THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

I, _____________________________________________, being an ordinary shareholder of Advanced, intend being present 

at the meeting to be held via Zoom on Friday, 12 November 2021.

Signed: ______________________________________

Date: ______________________________________

Should you wish to receive documents electronically, please insert your email address below:

Email: ______________________________________
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ADMINISTRATION 

Company details

Advanced Health Limited
Registration number: 2013/059246/06

Registered address

Walker Creek Office Park, Building 3, Floor 2
90 Florence Ribeiro Avenue, 
Muckleneuk, Pretoria 0181
(Postnet Suite 668, Private Bag X1, The Willows, 0041)

Directors

CA Grillenberger (chairman)
G van Emmenis*
Ms S Chonco*
FA van Hoogstraten (lead independent non-executive)
CJPG van Zyl
MC Resnik* +

PJ Jaffe+

Dr WT Mthembu
Dr J Oelofse 
YJ Visser
Dr KE Legodi
D Goss-Ross* (alternate to Gerhard van Emmenis)

* Executive
+ Australian

Chairman of the board: Mr Carl Grillenberger
CEO: Mr Gerhard van Emmenis
CFO : Ms Sinenhlanhla Chonco

Designated advisor

Grindrod Bank Limited
4th Floor, Grindrod Tower
8A Protea Place
Sandton, 2196
(PO Box 78011, Sandton, 2146)

Transfer secretaries

JSE Investor Services
13th Floor, 19 Ameshoff Street
Braamfontein
(PO Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000)

Commercial bankers

ABSA Bank Limited
2nd Floor, Block G
Lourie Place, Hillcrest Office Park
(177 Dyer Road, Hillcrest, Pretoria, 0083)

Company secretary

M Stoltz
Unit 6 The Stables Office Park
3 Ateljee Street, Randpark Ridge, 2194
(PO Box 1849, Northwold, 2155)

External auditor - Mazars

Mazars House, 54 Glenhove Road
Melrose Estate, Johannesburg, 2196
(Private Bag 6693, Johannesburg, 2000)

Attorneys

Phatshoane Henny Inc.
35 Markgraaff Street
Bloemfontein, 9301
(PO Box 153 or 260, Bloemfontein, 9300)

Listing details

Johannesburg Stock Exchange
Sector: AltX
JSE code: AVL
ISIN code: ZAE000189049

Listing date: 25 April 2014

Website address: www.advancedhealth.co.za

Year end: 30 June

Contact details

info@advancedhealth.co.za
Tel: 012 346 5020
Fax: 086 649 2111

Share price (cents per share)

High    51c (7 June 2021)
Low   16c (14 September 2020)
Average  25c

Audit and risk committee

CJPG van Zyl (Chairman)
PJ Jaffe
FA van Hoogstraten
YJ Visser

Social and ethics committee

Dr WT Mthembu (Chairman)
D Goss-Ross
FA van Hoogstraten
CA Grillenberger
S Chonco 

Remuneration and nominations committee

FA van Hoogstraten (Chairman)
CA Grillenberger
G van Emmenis

Shareholder diary

AGM     12 November 2021
Interim period    31 December 2021
Expected reporting date 
for interim results  25 February 2022
Financial year end   30 June 2022
Financial statements – 
expected publication date 30 August 2022
AGM     11 November 2022
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